
 

 

CITY OF PORT WENTWORTH 
CITY COUNCIL 

  JUNE 23, 2022 

 

 

  

 Council Meeting Room Regular Meeting 12:00 AM 

7224 GA HIGHWAY 21 

PORT WENTWORTH, GA  31407 

City of Port Wentworth Generated: 6/17/2022 4:34 PM Page 1   

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 

2. PRAYER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

3. ROLL CALL - CLERK OF COUNCIL 

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

5. RECOGNITION OF SPECIAL GUESTS 

6. PUBLIC COMMENTS - REGISTERED SPEAKERS 

7. ELECTIONS & APPOINTMENTS 

8. ADOPTION OF MINUTES 

A.  Regular Workshop and Council Meeting Minutes - May 26,2022 

9. COMMUNICATIONS & PETITIONS 

A. Discuss Committee Assignment Process 

10. COMMITTEE REPORTS 

11. CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Antrim Road Roadway Improvements Pay Request No. 5 in the amount of $58,858.92 to 
Sandhill ALS Construction, Inc. 

12. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

A. Adoption of FY2023 Budget-2nd Reading 

13. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Site Plan Review Application submitted by Katy Parker for PIN # 7-0906-03-019 (302 
Rice Hope Plantation Rd) for a General Development Site Plan to allow a Residential 
Substance Use Recovery Facility in a R-A (Residential Agriculture) Zoning District 

 

➢Public Hearing 
➢Action 

B. Site Plan Review Application submitted by Claret Communities, LLC., of behalf of Simz 

Investment Company, LLC., for PIN # 7-0976-02-027 (Highway 30) for a General 
Development Site Plan to allow a multi-family development (Noble Vines Phase II) in a P-
RIP (Planned Residential Institutional) Zoning District 

 



Agenda City Council June 23, 2022 

City of Port Wentworth Generated: 6/17/2022 4:34 PM Page 2   

➢Public Hearing 
➢Action 

C. Repairs to the Wastewater Treatment Plan UV System 

D. Service Delivery Strategy Resolution 

E. Downtown Development Authority Resolution 

F. Industrial Moratorium 

14. RESOLUTIONS/ORDINANCES/PROCLAMATIONS 

15. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

A. Personnel 

B. Real Estate 

C. Legal 

16. ADJOURNMENT 

17. AGENDA ITEMS 



 City Council Meeting: 06/23/22 12:00 AM 
 7224 GA Highway 21 Department: All 

 Port Wentworth, GA  31407 Category: Recognition 
  Prepared By: Zahnay Smoak 

 SCHEDULED Department Head: Brian Harvey 

  

 AGENDA ITEM (ID # 2691) DOC ID: 2691  

Updated: 6/17/2022 9:02 AM by Steve Davis  Page 1 

Discuss Committee Assignment Process 

Issue/Item:  
 

Background:  
 
Facts and Findings:  

 
Funding: 
 

Recommendation: 

9.A

Packet Pg. 3



 City Council Meeting: 06/23/22 12:00 AM 
 7224 GA Highway 21 Department: Development Services 

 Port Wentworth, GA  31407 Category: Purchase 
  Prepared By: Melanie Ellis 

 SCHEDULED Department Head: Brian Harvey 

  

 AGENDA ITEM (ID # 2678) DOC ID: 2678  

Updated: 6/14/2022 3:42 PM by Melanie Ellis  Page 1 

Antrim Road Roadway Improvements Pay Request No. 5 in 
the amount of $58,858.92 to Sandhill ALS Construction, Inc. 

Issue/Item: Antrim Road Roadway Improvements Pay Request No. 5 in the amount of 
$58,858.92 to Sandhill ALS Construction, Inc. 

 
Background: Antrim Road has been identified, by road condition standards established by 
the Georgia Department of Transportation, as City streets in need of repair and resurfacing.  

Trent Long, PE, T. R. Long Engineering, P. C., prepared plans and bid packets for the 
project. The contract was awarded to Sandhill ALS Construction, Inc., including approved 
change orders in the amount of $598,230.58. 

 
Facts and Findings: The contractor has completed a portion of the work in accordance 

with the contract. T.R. Long Engineering, P.C., has reviewed the applications, quantities, 
and values of work submitted by the contractor, and recommends payment in the amount 
of $58,858.92.  

 
Funding:  Budgeted Line Item 
 

Recommendation: Approval based upon the recommendation of T.R. Long. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Antrim Road Roadway Improvements Pay Request No. 5 JUNE 2022 (PDF) 

11.A

Packet Pg. 4



11.A.a

Packet Pg. 5

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

n
tr

im
 R

o
ad

 R
o

ad
w

ay
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
ts

 P
ay

 R
eq

u
es

t 
N

o
. 5

 J
U

N
E

 2
02

2 
 (

26
78

 :
 A

n
tr

im
 R

o
ad



11.A.a

Packet Pg. 6

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

n
tr

im
 R

o
ad

 R
o

ad
w

ay
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
ts

 P
ay

 R
eq

u
es

t 
N

o
. 5

 J
U

N
E

 2
02

2 
 (

26
78

 :
 A

n
tr

im
 R

o
ad



11.A.a

Packet Pg. 7

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

n
tr

im
 R

o
ad

 R
o

ad
w

ay
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
ts

 P
ay

 R
eq

u
es

t 
N

o
. 5

 J
U

N
E

 2
02

2 
 (

26
78

 :
 A

n
tr

im
 R

o
ad



11.A.a

Packet Pg. 8

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

n
tr

im
 R

o
ad

 R
o

ad
w

ay
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
ts

 P
ay

 R
eq

u
es

t 
N

o
. 5

 J
U

N
E

 2
02

2 
 (

26
78

 :
 A

n
tr

im
 R

o
ad

 R
o

ad
w

ay
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
ts

 P
ay

 R
eq

u
es

t 
N

o
.



 City Council Meeting: 06/23/22 12:00 AM 
 7224 GA Highway 21 Department: All 

 Port Wentworth, GA  31407 Category: Ordinance 
  Prepared By: Zahnay Smoak 

 SCHEDULED Department Head: Steve Davis 

  

 AGENDA ITEM (ID # 2692) DOC ID: 2692  

Updated: 6/17/2022 8:31 AM by Steve Davis  Page 1 

Adoption of FY2023 Budget-2nd Reading 

Issue/Item:  The City annually adopts a balanced budget.    
 

Background: The City has had dynamic growth and has a vast number of needs.  The 
administration has been understaffed for many years and in this budget, we will attempt to 
ensure we are providing adequate staff to maximize our resources and enhance city 

services to the residents.  This budget provides for both operations and capital 
expenditures.  This budget maintains a millage rate of 4.16.  The budget provides for 5% 
COLA raise for all employee to keep up with inflation.   

 
 

Facts and Findings: This budget adds 17 new positions (9 fire, 1 police, 5 administration, 
2 public works). It provides funds for engineering and preconstruction for key projects that 
were prioritized by Mayor and Council.  It provides funds for a new computer lab as well as 

roads and stormwater projects.  It creates a new technology department which will 
consolidate all departments expenditures into one location for consistency and oversight.  It 
provides funds to upgrade our accounting software and professional contracts for economic 

development.  
 

Funding:  $20.6 Million in General Funds 
 
Recommendation:  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• FY23 Budget Book 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• FY2023 Budget Book - Final (PDF) 

12.A

Packet Pg. 9



1 
 

P
o

rt
 W

e
n

tw
o

rt
h

 
FY

20
2

3 
B

U
D

G
ET

 

 

  
  

 

INSIDE  
PG. 3 

Elected Officials 

PG. 7 

City Manager Letter 

PG. 10 

General Fund Summary 

PG. 21 

Organizational Chart 

 

HIGH EXPECTATIONS 
MAY 26, 2022 

The City of Port Wentworth’s has a fiscal year that runs from July 1st through June 

30th every year and they are required to pass an annual budget prior to the end of the 

year.  This budget is balanced with revenue and expenditures. It presented both 

operational and capital expenses and was done with participation of all department 

heads and with the priorities set by the Mayor and Council.   

12.A.a

Packet Pg. 10

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

 B
o

o
k 

- 
F

in
al

  (
26

92
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

-2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

)



2 
 

 

 

 

 

   TABLE OF 
CONTENTS 

1. Elected Officials - 3 

2. City Manager Letter - 7 

3. Millage Rate - 8 

4. Tax Digest - 9 

5. Revenue Summary - 10 

6. Total Fund Report - 20 

 

 

 
 

   
  

7. Administration - 21 

8. Police – 27 

9. Fire – 33 

10. Public Works – 36 

11. Development Services – 49 

12. Leisure Services – 52 

13. Human Resources (Budget Falls Under Administration)– 55 

14. Finance (Budget Falls Under Administration) – 55 

15. Technology - 56 

12.A.a

Packet Pg. 11

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

 B
o

o
k 

- 
F

in
al

  (
26

92
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

-2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

)



3 
 

  

MAYOR  
GARY NORTON 
ELECTED MAYOR NOVEMEBER 2017 

Gary Norton was born and raised in Port Wentworth. He graduated 

from Groves High School in 1975 furthering his education in 

management. In 1981, Gary married Donna Alford-Norton from Pooler. 
They have a daughter, a son, and five grandchildren. Mr. Norton raised 

his two children in Port Wentworth where he volunteered on the 

Recreation Department, He coached his daughter’s softball teams for 7 

years leading the 16 & Under girls’ team to the CAA Championship. He 

also coached his son’s baseball, football, and basketball teams. 

Mr. Norton is employed at International Paper in Port Wentworth. He 

was ordained a Deacon at North Salem Baptist Church in 1990 where 

he functioned on the Board of Deacons for 6 years, as well as 

volunteered on the Youth Recreation Committee. Mr. Norton also 
served as PTO President where his children attended. In 2009, Gary was 
elected to the Port Wentworth City Council and served until 2011.  

 

  

 

  

  

 

12.A.a

Packet Pg. 12

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

 B
o

o
k 

- 
F

in
al

  (
26

92
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

-2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

)



4 
 

  

MAYOR PRO TEM 
THOMAS BARBEE 
ELECTED NOVEMBER 2015 

Thomas Barbee is currently serving his second term. Serving people and the 
community is Councilman Barbee’s motto. In January 2022 Mr. Barbee was 
unanimously selected by City Council to serve as Mayor Pro Tem. 

Born in Tennessee and raised in Indiana, he joined the United States Air Force 
in 1984 and retired in 2005 after 21 years of honorable service. His work at the 
Pentagon along with decades of service ingrained a strong belief in 
accountability. Mr. Barbee moved to Port Wentworth in August 2011 and fell in 
love with the pulse of the community. 

In 2014, he accepted the appointment for Community Watch Chairmen of Rice 
Creek, working tirelessly alongside other leaders to create safer neighborhoods. 

He holds a Bachelor of Science in Information Systems Management and 
Associate degrees, Criminal Justice and Information Systems Technology from 

the Community College of the Air Force. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

AT-LARGE POST 1  
JO SMITH 
ELECTED NOVEMEBER 2021 

Jo Smith has over 30 years of professional business experience. After working 
for two Fortune 500 companies in management roles, she became an 
entrepreneur, running three successful companies and managing hundreds of 
employees. 

She has experience with government and has won and executed over two-dozen 
state contracts for her company. She has the experience to deal with mind-
bending government bureaucracy and red tape throughout all layers of 
government. 

Jo’s prior civic involvement includes four years on the board of SPLOST 
oversight committee. And five years on the board of the “Buy Local” initiative 
successfully encourage many to patronize local businesses. 

 

  

 

  

  

12.A.a

Packet Pg. 13

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

 B
o

o
k 

- 
F

in
al

  (
26

92
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

-2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

)



5 
 

  

 

DISTRICT 1 
GABRIELLE NELSON 
ELECTED NOVEMBER 2021 

Gabrielle Nelson was born in Savannah and raised by her grandparents. She 

credits them for providing her with outstanding moral skills and the ability to 

handle all situations with sensibility and tact. She was educated in the SCCPSS 

and graduated as her class president. Mrs. Nelson’s mission is to bring 

compassionate and sensible decision making to Port Wentworth that will allow 

our city to thrive economically and enhance overall community safety and 

enjoyment. 

Mrs. Nelson has served on the Port Wentworth Planning Commission for the 

last two years. During the last 12 years she has matriculated through Chatham 

County local government where she currently manages the IT Helpdesk and 

procurement division. She understands financial risks and can plan and project 

appropriately to enhance Port Wentworth's critical infrastructure. 

 

 

 

  

DISTRICT 2  
MARK STEPHENS 
ELECTED NOVEMEBER 2017 

Mark Stephens, SSCP is a member of the International Information 

System Security Certification Consortium (aka (ISC)^2) and holds 

degrees in both Criminal Justice and Information Security and 

Assurance from Atlanta Metropolitan College & Kennesaw State 
University respectively.  He is responsible for helping to secure data 

and the networks of a multibillion-dollar Global Aerospace Company 

by performing multiple roles within Information Security.  Mark 

currently holds several Information Technology certifications and, in 
the past, has held technical certifications from organizations such as 

Cisco Systems, Palo Alto Networks and Microsoft.  Mr. Stephens 

moved to Port Wentworth in 2013 and enjoys traveling, discovering 

great music, researching Information Security and technical issues & 
spending time with his family. 

 

  
   

  

12.A.a

Packet Pg. 14

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

 B
o

o
k 

- 
F

in
al

  (
26

92
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

-2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

)



6 
 

  

 

DISTRICT 3     
RUFUS BRIGHT 
ELECTED NOVEMBER 2021 

Rufus Bright, Jr. served in the United States Air Force and is a Veteran 

of the Vietnam Era. He holds a bachelor’s in criminal justice from 

Wayne State University in Detroit, Michigan. He also attended law 

school but transferred to Midwestern Christian Institute.  

Mr. Bright also holds a Bachelor of Religious Education and his official 

Ordination Certificate that gained him the title of Minister.  

Minister Bright worked with the 50th Street Church of Christ, the 

Nursing Home Ministry at Tara Nursing Home in Thunderbolt, 

Georgia, the Prison Ministry at the Chatham County Jail, and the 

Executive Committee of the Savannah Branch of the NAACP.  

For the past four years, Minister Bright has been serving as Minister for 
the Church of Christ in Hardeeville, South Carolina. His political 

aspiration is to "strive to bring a united city together, bring more job 

opportunities to the city, and have a safe secure city."  

 

 

DISTRICT 4  
GLENN JONES 
ELECTED NOVEMEBER 2019 

Glenn is serving his first term as Councilman in District 4. Previously 

Glenn served as Mayor for twelve years from 2006 – 2018. After being 
away for two years Glenn felt the fall to come back and represent his 

district the best way he can. Both of Glenn’ parents served on council, 

so it was in his blood to give back to his city and serve the citizens of 

Port Wentworth. Glenn was born and raised in Port Wentworth and has 
lived in the city for 63 years. He is married to his wife Kathy and has 
two adult children and five grandchildren. 

Glenn and Kathy attend the First Baptist Church of Port Wentworth. 

Glenn is a performance coach at Georgia Pacific where he has worked 

for 32 years. Glenn previously coached recreation teams in the city and 

even took on the task of coaching a T-Ball team while serving as 
Mayor. He once rescheduled a planning meeting when it conflicted with 

his kids T-Ball game. Kids in the city are important to him during his 

tenure as Mayor and now as a Councilman and he supports our 

recreation to its fullest. He continues to spearhead the drive to get the 
city’s new recreation complex built. Glenn is now serving his 39 th year 

in high school athletics officiating both baseball and football. That is his 
love; being involved with youth both young and old.  

12.A.a

Packet Pg. 15

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

 B
o

o
k 

- 
F

in
al

  (
26

92
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

-2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

)



7 
 

 

 

 CITY MANAGER STEVE DAVIS 

BUDGET LETTER 

Dear Mayor and Council,  

I am honored to present my first proposed budget 

as City Manager. I am pleased to report that the 

proposed FY2023 Budget is structurally 

balanced and complies with all financial 

requirements. Port Wentworth is growing 

rapidly, and this budget shows the commitment 

to providing new infrastructure and customer 

service at the highest level. This is an exciting 

time to be a resident of Port Wentworth as we are 

strategically positioning the city for great 

economic success.  

Working with our department heads and 

following the guidance of the Mayor and Council 

this budget set the following priorities: 

• No increases to the millage rate 

• Increases the levels of operating 

services consistent with the growth of 

the community 

• Ensures peak performance and 

efficiency 

     

• Facilitates economic growth 

• Renews our commitment to parks and recreation 

• Adds strength to our Fire Department with personnel and equipment 

• Provides for new temporary space for administration and technology lab 

• Starts process of building new facilities for northside 

Preparation: While this year we have had a condensed time period to complete the budget, we were able to hold both group and 

individual department meetings to determine needs of each department.  The process this year was more open and transparent 

with the departments allowing them access to both expenditures and revenue figures.  Their individual revenues will be mapped 

back to their departments as best as possible.   

Funding: The total General Funds of the Proposed FY2023 Budget are $20.6 Million and the Water and Sewer Fund Proposed 

Budget of $6.9 million.  The total budget including Capital Funds and Hotel Motel Funds is $34.1 million.   

Positions: The city has been understaffed in many areas and we are proposing 17 new positions (9 fire, 1 police, 5 administration, 

2 public works).  This will bring our total to 121 employees with 105 full-time and 16 part-time positions.  This budget 

recommendation is based on a proposal to maintain the general property tax rate or millage at 4.16.  The Council must set the rate 

before the tax digest is adopted by the Georgia Department of Revenue.  This year’s budget plan pursues the goal of promoting 

fiscal responsibility and keeping property taxes as low as possible.  Therefore, I present the proposed FY2023 Budget to the Port 

Wentworth Mayor and Council, for your consideration.   

12.A.a

Packet Pg. 16

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

 B
o

o
k 

- 
F

in
al

  (
26

92
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

-2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

)



8 
 

 

MILLAGE RATE  

 

12.A.a

Packet Pg. 17

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

 B
o

o
k 

- 
F

in
al

  (
26

92
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

-2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

)



9 
 
 

 

TAX DIGEST AND 5 YEAR HISTORY 
 

  
  

  

 

12.A.a

Packet Pg. 18

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

 B
o

o
k 

- 
F

in
al

  (
26

92
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

-2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

)



10 
 

General Fund Summary

 

12.A.a

Packet Pg. 19

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

 B
o

o
k 

- 
F

in
al

  (
26

92
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

-2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

)



11 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Notes 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

12.A.a

Packet Pg. 20

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

 B
o

o
k 

- 
F

in
al

  (
26

92
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

-2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

)



12 
 

All Revenue 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

12.A.a

Packet Pg. 21

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

 B
o

o
k 

- 
F

in
al

  (
26

92
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

-2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

)



13 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

12.A.a

Packet Pg. 22

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

 B
o

o
k 

- 
F

in
al

  (
26

92
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

-2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

)



14 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

12.A.a

Packet Pg. 23

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

 B
o

o
k 

- 
F

in
al

  (
26

92
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

-2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

)



15 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

12.A.a

Packet Pg. 24

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

 B
o

o
k 

- 
F

in
al

  (
26

92
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

-2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

)



16 
 

 

 

12.A.a

Packet Pg. 25

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

 B
o

o
k 

- 
F

in
al

  (
26

92
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

-2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

)



17 
 

 

 

12.A.a

Packet Pg. 26

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

 B
o

o
k 

- 
F

in
al

  (
26

92
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

-2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

)



18 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

12.A.a

Packet Pg. 27

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

 B
o

o
k 

- 
F

in
al

  (
26

92
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

-2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

)



19 
 

 

 

 

 

 

12.A.a

Packet Pg. 28

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

 B
o

o
k 

- 
F

in
al

  (
26

92
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

-2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

)



20 
 

Total Fund Report 

 
 

 

 

 

 

12.A.a

Packet Pg. 29

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

 B
o

o
k 

- 
F

in
al

  (
26

92
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

-2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

)



21 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

12.A.a

Packet Pg. 30

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

 B
o

o
k 

- 
F

in
al

  (
26

92
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

-2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

)



22 
 

Administration Budget 

  

12.A.a

Packet Pg. 31

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

 B
o

o
k 

- 
F

in
al

  (
26

92
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

-2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

)



23 
 

 

12.A.a

Packet Pg. 32

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

 B
o

o
k 

- 
F

in
al

  (
26

92
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

-2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

)



24 
 

 

 

12.A.a

Packet Pg. 33

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

 B
o

o
k 

- 
F

in
al

  (
26

92
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

-2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

)



25 
 

 

 

 

12.A.a

Packet Pg. 34

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

 B
o

o
k 

- 
F

in
al

  (
26

92
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

-2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

)



26 
 

  

12.A.a

Packet Pg. 35

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

 B
o

o
k 

- 
F

in
al

  (
26

92
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

-2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

)



27 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

12.A.a

Packet Pg. 36

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

 B
o

o
k 

- 
F

in
al

  (
26

92
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

-2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

)



28 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

12.A.a

Packet Pg. 37

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

 B
o

o
k 

- 
F

in
al

  (
26

92
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

-2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

)



29 
 

 

12.A.a

Packet Pg. 38

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

 B
o

o
k 

- 
F

in
al

  (
26

92
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

-2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

)



30 
 

 

 

12.A.a

Packet Pg. 39

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

 B
o

o
k 

- 
F

in
al

  (
26

92
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

-2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

)



31 
 

 

12.A.a

Packet Pg. 40

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

 B
o

o
k 

- 
F

in
al

  (
26

92
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

-2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

)



32 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

12.A.a

Packet Pg. 41

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

 B
o

o
k 

- 
F

in
al

  (
26

92
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

-2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

)



33 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

12.A.a

Packet Pg. 42

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

 B
o

o
k 

- 
F

in
al

  (
26

92
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

-2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

)



34 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

12.A.a

Packet Pg. 43

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

 B
o

o
k 

- 
F

in
al

  (
26

92
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

-2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

)



35 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

12.A.a

Packet Pg. 44

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

 B
o

o
k 

- 
F

in
al

  (
26

92
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

-2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

)



36 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

12.A.a

Packet Pg. 45

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

 B
o

o
k 

- 
F

in
al

  (
26

92
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

-2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

)



37 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

12.A.a

Packet Pg. 46

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

 B
o

o
k 

- 
F

in
al

  (
26

92
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

-2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

)



38 
 

 

12.A.a

Packet Pg. 47

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

 B
o

o
k 

- 
F

in
al

  (
26

92
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

-2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

)



39 
 

 

12.A.a

Packet Pg. 48

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

 B
o

o
k 

- 
F

in
al

  (
26

92
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

-2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

)



40 
 

 

12.A.a

Packet Pg. 49

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

 B
o

o
k 

- 
F

in
al

  (
26

92
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

-2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

)



41 
 

 
 

12.A.a

Packet Pg. 50

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

 B
o

o
k 

- 
F

in
al

  (
26

92
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

-2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

)



42 
 

 

12.A.a

Packet Pg. 51

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

 B
o

o
k 

- 
F

in
al

  (
26

92
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

-2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

)



43 
 

 

12.A.a

Packet Pg. 52

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

 B
o

o
k 

- 
F

in
al

  (
26

92
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

-2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

)



44 
 

 

12.A.a

Packet Pg. 53

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

 B
o

o
k 

- 
F

in
al

  (
26

92
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

-2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

)



45 
 

 

12.A.a

Packet Pg. 54

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

 B
o

o
k 

- 
F

in
al

  (
26

92
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

-2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

)



46 
 

 

12.A.a

Packet Pg. 55

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

 B
o

o
k 

- 
F

in
al

  (
26

92
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

-2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

)



47 
 

 
 

 

12.A.a

Packet Pg. 56

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

 B
o

o
k 

- 
F

in
al

  (
26

92
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

-2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

)



48 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

12.A.a

Packet Pg. 57

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

 B
o

o
k 

- 
F

in
al

  (
26

92
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

-2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

)



49 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

12.A.a

Packet Pg. 58

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

 B
o

o
k 

- 
F

in
al

  (
26

92
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

-2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

)



50 
 

 

12.A.a

Packet Pg. 59

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

 B
o

o
k 

- 
F

in
al

  (
26

92
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

-2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

)



51 
 

 
 

12.A.a

Packet Pg. 60

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

 B
o

o
k 

- 
F

in
al

  (
26

92
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

-2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

)



52 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

12.A.a

Packet Pg. 61

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

 B
o

o
k 

- 
F

in
al

  (
26

92
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

-2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

)



53 
 

 

12.A.a

Packet Pg. 62

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

 B
o

o
k 

- 
F

in
al

  (
26

92
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

-2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

)



54 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

12.A.a

Packet Pg. 63

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

 B
o

o
k 

- 
F

in
al

  (
26

92
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

-2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

)



55 
 

 
 
 

Budget Falls Under Administrative 

 

 
Budget Falls Under Administrative 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

12.A.a

Packet Pg. 64

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

 B
o

o
k 

- 
F

in
al

  (
26

92
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

-2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

)



56 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

12.A.a

Packet Pg. 65

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

 B
o

o
k 

- 
F

in
al

  (
26

92
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

-2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

)



57 
 

Technology Budget 

 

 

12.A.a

Packet Pg. 66

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

 B
o

o
k 

- 
F

in
al

  (
26

92
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

-2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

)



58 
 

 

12.A.a

Packet Pg. 67

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

 B
o

o
k 

- 
F

in
al

  (
26

92
 :

 A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
F

Y
20

23
 B

u
d

g
et

-2
n

d
 R

ea
d

in
g

)



 City Council Meeting: 06/23/22 12:00 AM 
 7224 GA Highway 21 Department: Development Services 

 Port Wentworth, GA  31407 Category: Planning/Zoning Item 
  Prepared By: Melanie Ellis 

 SCHEDULED Department Head: Brian Harvey 

  

 AGENDA ITEM (ID # 2679) DOC ID: 2679  

Updated: 6/14/2022 4:00 PM by Melanie Ellis  Page 1 

Site Plan Review Application submitted by Katy Parker for 
PIN # 7-0906-03-019 (302 Rice Hope Plantation Rd) for a 
General Development Site Plan to allow a Residential 
Substance Use Recovery Facility in a R-A (Residential 

Agriculture) Zoning District 

Issue/Item: Site Plan Review Application submitted by Katy Parker for PIN # 7-0906-03-
019 (302 Rice Hope Plantation Rd) for a General Development Site Plan to allow a 

Residential Substance Use Recovery Facility in a R-A (Residential Agriculture) Zoning 
District. 
 

Background: The subject property is currently a existing residence. There are currently an 
existing home, barn and several accessory buildings on the subject property.  
 

Facts and Findings: The applicant intends to use the property and existing buildings to 
house clients for substance abuse and mental health treatment. 

 
Funding: N/A 
 

Recommendation: The Planning Commission will hear this application on Monday, June 
13, 2022 at 6:30 PM. / UPDATE: THE PLANNING COMMISSION VOTED 
UNANIMOUSLY TO DENY THIS APPLICATION.  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• 302 RICE HOPE PLANTATION RD PARKER G-SITE PLAN JUNE 2022 - Application (PDF) 

• 302 RICE HOPE PLANTATION RD PARKER G-SITE PLAN JUNE 2022 - Email from Dr. Parker (PDF) 

• 302 RICE HOPE PLANTATION RD PARKER G-SITE PLAN JUNE 2022 - Timeline (DOCX) 

• Planning Commission Minutes June 13, 2022 DRAFT (PDF) 

13.A

Packet Pg. 68



13.A.a

Packet Pg. 69

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

02
 R

IC
E

 H
O

P
E

 P
L

A
N

T
A

T
IO

N
 R

D
 P

A
R

K
E

R
 G

-S
IT

E
 P

L
A

N
 J

U
N

E
 2

02
2 

- 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
26

79
 :

 S
it

e 
P

la
n

 R
ev

ie
w

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 (

G
en

er
al

)



13.A.a

Packet Pg. 70

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

02
 R

IC
E

 H
O

P
E

 P
L

A
N

T
A

T
IO

N
 R

D
 P

A
R

K
E

R
 G

-S
IT

E
 P

L
A

N
 J

U
N

E
 2

02
2 

- 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
26

79
 :

 S
it

e 
P

la
n

 R
ev

ie
w

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 (

G
en

er
al

)



13.A.a

Packet Pg. 71

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

02
 R

IC
E

 H
O

P
E

 P
L

A
N

T
A

T
IO

N
 R

D
 P

A
R

K
E

R
 G

-S
IT

E
 P

L
A

N
 J

U
N

E
 2

02
2 

- 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
26

79
 :

 S
it

e 
P

la
n

 R
ev

ie
w

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 (

G
en

er
al

)



13.A.a

Packet Pg. 72

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

02
 R

IC
E

 H
O

P
E

 P
L

A
N

T
A

T
IO

N
 R

D
 P

A
R

K
E

R
 G

-S
IT

E
 P

L
A

N
 J

U
N

E
 2

02
2 

- 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
26

79
 :



From: Katy Parker
To: Melanie Ellis
Cc: Glenn Parker
Subject: Re: Update
Date: Thursday, May 19, 2022 4:37:00 PM

Hi Melanie,

Our project (name: Front Porch {social} club) is for a co-ed (clients 10 maximum, will remain
with us during the duration of treatment- from 30-90 days), substance use primary and mental
health (co-occurring) treatment program. It will be staffed 24/7 and clients will not have their
own vehicles but will be transported solely by staff in a staff vehicle. 

We do not want to disturb the residence, the land or the property in totality. We will utilize the
residence as is as well as rescued animals as part of therapy (like the horses already on site).
Staffing will generally consist of 2 counselors per shift: day 7-3, swing 3-11, overnight 11-7.
Overnight staff are awake throughout the shift. 

Clients are not allowed to leave the property without staff knowledge and acceptance for any
reason, unless they are discharging the program completely.  

The immersive program will consist of individual therapy, group therapy, AA/ 12 step based
and alternative recovery models. We will provide all food and other essentials to clients during
their time with us. Only clients accepted and admitted are allowed on site with the exception
of staff. 

We will also employ contracted employees to provide certain pieces of the program. For
example: (these are a rough outline of what we anticipate but may change depending on the
professionals we can locate to hire):

Chef
Equine therapist 
Yoga instructor 
Meditation/ mindfulness 
Detox Acupuncture 
Trauma therapist 
First responder/ vet peer assistant
Eco therapist/ gardening (we will have clients assist with a small garden where fruits,
vegetables, lettuces, etc will be grown and used for meals) 
Medical/ Clinical Director

Contracted employees will only be on site for the days/times they are scheduled to provide
their speciality. 

Please let me know if you have any other questions. 

Question for you, will our architect need to be at any of the planned meetings for this project?
I assume so, so I just want to give him as much warning as possible so he can arrange his
schedule accordingly. 

Thanks so much. 

13.A.b

Packet Pg. 73

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

02
 R

IC
E

 H
O

P
E

 P
L

A
N

T
A

T
IO

N
 R

D
 P

A
R

K
E

R
 G

-S
IT

E
 P

L
A

N
 J

U
N

E
 2

02
2 

- 
E

m
ai

l f
ro

m
 D

r.
 P

ar
ke

r 
 (

26
79

 :
 S

it
e 

P
la

n
 R

ev
ie

w
 A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

mailto:dr.katyp@gmail.com
mailto:mellis@cityofportwentworth.com
mailto:grparker1971@gmail.com


4900 

1 
 6/17/2022 1:49 PM 

Project Timeline 

Project Number: 220257 

Project Name: 302 Rice Hope Plantation Rd – General Site Plan 

Applicant: Katy Parker 

Owner: Katy Parker 

City Review Engineer: n/a  

 

• 4/29/2022 – application received; complete 

• 6/13/2022 – The Planning Commission voted unanimously to deny the application.  

13.A.c

Packet Pg. 74

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

02
 R

IC
E

 H
O

P
E

 P
L

A
N

T
A

T
IO

N
 R

D
 P

A
R

K
E

R
 G

-S
IT

E
 P

L
A

N
 J

U
N

E
 2

02
2 

- 
T

im
el

in
e 

 (
26

79
 :

 S
it

e 
P

la
n

 R
ev

ie
w

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 (

G
en

er
al

) 
30

2



 

 

CITY OF PORT WENTWORTH 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

  JUNE 13, 2022 

 

 

  

 Council Meeting Room Regular Meeting 6:30 PM 

7224 GA HIGHWAY 21 
PORT WENTWORTH, GA  31407 

City of Port Wentworth Generated: 6/14/2022 3:31 PM Page 1   

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 

Vice-Chairman Lauree Morris called the meeting to order.  

2. PRAYER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Commissioner Herrin led the Prayer and Pledge of Allegiance.  

3. ROLL CALL - SECRETARY 

 

Attendee Name Title Status Arrived 

Bill Herrin Planning Commissioner Present  

Rosetta Franklin Planning Commissioner Present  

Wanda Rollf Planning Commissioner Absent  

Lauree Morris Planning Commissioner Present  

CJ Neesmith Planning Commissioner Absent  

Janet Hester Planning Commissioner Present  

Brian Harvey Director of Development Services Present  

Melanie Ellis Building Inspector Present  

Steve Davis City Manager Present  

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

1. Approval of Agenda 

Item 6A was requested to be removed from the agenda by the applicant. The agenda was 
approved with the requested change.  

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Janet Hester, Planning Commissioner 

SECONDER: Rosetta Franklin, Planning Commissioner 

AYES: Herrin, Franklin, Morris, Hester 

ABSENT: Rollf, Neesmith 

5. ADOPTION OF MINUTES 

A. Planning Commission - Regular Meeting - May 9, 2022 6:30 PM 

Meeting minutes tabled to next month due to minute corrections requested by 
Commissioner Hester. 

13.A.d

Packet Pg. 75

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 M

in
u

te
s 

Ju
n

e 
13

, 2
02

2 
D

R
A

F
T

  (
26

79
 :

 S
it

e 
P

la
n

 R
ev

ie
w

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 (

G
en

er
al

) 
30

2 
R

ic
e 

H
o

p
e 

P
la

n
ta

ti
o

n
 R

d



Minutes Planning Commission June 13, 2022 

City of Port Wentworth Generated: 6/14/2022 3:31 PM Page 2   

RESULT: TABLED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Janet Hester, Planning Commissioner 

SECONDER: Rosetta Franklin, Planning Commissioner 

AYES: Herrin, Franklin, Morris, Hester 

ABSENT: Rollf, Neesmith 

6. ZONING MAP AMENDMENTS (REZONING) 

A. Zoning Map Amendment Application submitted by The Dewitt-Tilton Group on behalf of 
ANJPK Property, LLC for PIN #'s 7-0978-02-004 & 7-0978-02-007 (906 Meinhard Road) 
to Rezone from R-A (Residential Agriculture) to P-C-2 (Planned Community Business) 
Zoning District for the purpose of a Gas Station / Convenience Store and Retail Store 

Application withdrawn by applicant. Agenda correction approved during item 4.1. 

RESULT: WITHDRAWN [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Janet Hester, Planning Commissioner 

SECONDER: Rosetta Franklin, Planning Commissioner 

AYES: Herrin, Franklin, Morris, Hester 

ABSENT: Rollf, Neesmith 

7. ZONING TEXT AMENDMENTS (ORDINANCES) 

8. SITE PLAN/SUBDIVISION APPROVAL 

A. Site Plan Review Application submitted by Katy Parker for PIN # 7-0906-03-019 (302 
Rice Hope Plantation Rd) for a General Development Site Plan to allow a Residential 
Substance Use Recovery Facility in a R-A (Residential Agriculture) Zoning District 

The applicant, Katy Parker, was present. Dr. Parker's architect Chad Lord was also 

present. Mr. Lord gave a brief overview of the project.  
-Public Hearing 
--Georgia Benton, 135 Saussy Road - spoke against the application 

--Vince Thompson, 8144 Old Hwy 21 - spoke against the application 
--Angela Steel Scruggs, 158 Grace Lane, Rincon - spoke against the application  
--Thomas Haralson, 100 Roseberry Cir - spoke against the application 
--Mrs. Harry Stewart, 502 Rice Hope Plantation Road - spoke against the application 
--Toyna Brown, Berrien Road - spoke against the application 
--Murray Marshall, 196 Coffee Point Dr, Savannah - spoke against the application  

--Trent Thompson, 8140 Old Hwy 21, spoke against the application 
--Carol Johnson, 121 Rice Hope Plantation Road, spoke against the application 
--Dawn Sample, 920 Meinhard Rd, spoke against the application 
--Donna Archer, 125 Rice Hope Plantation Rd, spoke against the application 
--Trevor Ferguson, 6 Laurel Ridge Ct, spoke against the application 
--Jason Todd, 8142 Old Hwy 21, spoke against the application  
--Christine Stewart, 504 Rice Hope Plantation Rd, spoke against the application 

 
After the public hearing was closed, Dr. Parker responded to some of the concerns. Dr. 
Parker stated that the facility would be staffed 24 hours a day, 7 days a week and she 
currently resides at the location and intends on moving somewhere nearby. Dr. Parker 
explained the clients will not be allowed to leave the property without a staff member, the 
clients will not be allowed to have vehicles, and there is a screening process that each 
client has to go to before being accepted. Commissioner Morris asked how may vehicles 

would come and go to the property each day. Dr. Parker responded that there will be 
around 15 full time staff members and that some outside counselors. Commissioner 
Hester made the comment that she appreciates what Dr. Parker is trying to do but does 
not think this the appropriate location for this type of facility. Commissioner Morris asked 

13.A.d

Packet Pg. 76

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 M

in
u

te
s 

Ju
n

e 
13

, 2
02

2 
D

R
A

F
T

  (
26

79
 :

 S
it

e 
P

la
n

 R
ev

ie
w

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 (

G
en

er
al

) 
30

2 
R

ic
e 

H
o

p
e 

P
la

n
ta

ti
o

n
 R

d



Minutes Planning Commission June 13, 2022 

City of Port Wentworth Generated: 6/14/2022 3:31 PM Page 3   

if they have approached the Health Department to make sure the septic system would be 
able to handle the amount of people that would live in the house. Dr. Parker has not. 

Commissioner Franklin made the motion to Deny the application. Commissioner Herrin 
seconded the motion to Deny the application. The vote to Deny the application was 

unanimous.  

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Rosetta Franklin, Planning Commissioner 

SECONDER: Bill Herrin, Planning Commissioner 

AYES: Herrin, Franklin, Morris, Hester 

ABSENT: Rollf, Neesmith 

B. Site Plan Review Application submitted by Claret Communities, LLC., of behalf of Simz 

Investment Company, LLC., for PIN # 7-0976-02-027 (Highway 30) for a General 
Development Site Plan to allow a multi-family development (Noble Vines Phase II) in a P-
RIP (Planned Residential Institutional) Zoning District 

Nikhil Duggiral with Thomas & Hutton, was present and gave an overview of the project. 
Commissioner Hester asked if the developers/applicants had a community meeting. Mr. 
Duggiral stated no they have not. Commissioner Morris asked what the buffer between 
the wetlands and the building. Mr. Duggiral stated a buffer is not required but he believes 

the closest building is around 30 feet from the wetland. Commissioner Morris asked if a 
tree survey has been done. Mr. Duggiral stated there was and they would protect any 
significant trees as designed by City ordnance. Steve Davis stated that he was concerned 
about the setback only being 20 foot from Highway 30.  
  
-Public Hearing 

--Georgia Benton, 135 Saussy Road - spoke against the application.  
--Janet Bryant, 154 Berrien Road - spoke against the application 
--Vince Thompson, 8104 Old Hwy 21, asked questions about the City tree ordnance 
 
After the public hearing was closed, Mr. Duggiral answered concerns raised. There were 

several comments made regarding the note on the plans stating "Berrien Road - 30' R/W 
(This Section Closed)) near phase 1 of the project. Mr. Duggiral explained that the 

comment was just from the surveyors that the road was closed or impassable when the 
survey was done and the Developer had no intentions of closing Berrien Road. After 
several minutes of discussion, Commissioner Morris made motion to approve the 
application with the condition that a 50 foot buffer between the wetlands and 
development be implemented and that the setback from Highway 30 be increased. 
Commissioner Herrin seconded the motion to approve with conditions. Commissioners 
Herrin, Franklin, and Morris voted Yay. Commissioner Hester voted Nay. The motion was 

approved 3-1. 

RESULT: APPROVED [3 TO 1] 

MOVER: Lauree Morris, Planning Commissioner 

SECONDER: Bill Herrin, Planning Commissioner 

AYES: Herrin, Franklin, Morris 

NAYS: Hester 

ABSENT: Rollf, Neesmith 

9. NEW BUSINESS 

10. ADJOURNMENT 

A. Adjournment 

13.A.d

Packet Pg. 77

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 M

in
u

te
s 

Ju
n

e 
13

, 2
02

2 
D

R
A

F
T

  (
26

79
 :

 S
it

e 
P

la
n

 R
ev

ie
w

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 (

G
en

er
al

) 
30

2 
R

ic
e 

H
o

p
e 

P
la

n
ta

ti
o

n
 R

d



Minutes Planning Commission June 13, 2022 

City of Port Wentworth Generated: 6/14/2022 3:31 PM Page 4   

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Lauree Morris, Planning Commissioner 

SECONDER: Bill Herrin, Planning Commissioner 

AYES: Herrin, Franklin, Morris, Hester 

ABSENT: Rollf, Neesmith 

. 

 

________________________________________________ 
Chairman 
 
 
The foregoing minutes are true and correct and approved by me on this ________ day of 
____________________________________, 2022. 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
Secretary 

13.A.d

Packet Pg. 78

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 M

in
u

te
s 

Ju
n

e 
13

, 2
02

2 
D

R
A

F
T

  (
26

79
 :

 S
it

e 
P

la
n

 R
ev

ie
w

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 (

G
en

er
al

) 
30

2 
R

ic
e 

H
o

p
e 

P
la

n
ta

ti
o

n
 R

d



 City Council Meeting: 06/23/22 12:00 AM 
 7224 GA Highway 21 Department: Development Services 

 Port Wentworth, GA  31407 Category: Planning/Zoning Item 
  Prepared By: Melanie Ellis 

 SCHEDULED Department Head: Brian Harvey 

  

 AGENDA ITEM (ID # 2680) DOC ID: 2680  

Updated: 6/14/2022 4:04 PM by Melanie Ellis  Page 1 

Site Plan Review Application submitted by Claret 
Communities, LLC., of behalf of Simz Investment Company, 

LLC., for PIN # 7-0976-02-027 (Highway 30) for a General 
Development Site Plan to allow a multi-family development 

(Noble Vines Phase II) in a P-RIP (Planned Residential 
Institutional) Zoning District 

Issue/Item: Site Plan Review Application submitted by Claret Communities, LLC., of behalf 
of Simz Investment Company, LLC., for PIN # 7-0976-02-027 (Highway 30) for a General 

Development Site Plan to allow a multi-family development (Noble Vines Phase II) in a P-
RIP (Planned Residential Institutional) Zoning District 
 

Background: The subject property is currently vacant woodland. There are no buildings or 
structures on the subject property. The overall concept plan for Phases 1, 2 and 3 of Noble 
Vines was approved during the regular City Council meeting on April 22, 2021. 

 
Facts and Findings: Noble Vines Phase 2 will consist of 60 townhomes, associated parking, 

utilities, drainage and infrastructure improvements. There will be two entrances to the 
development from Highway 30.  
 

Funding: N/A 
 
Recommendation: The Planning Commission will hear this application on Monday, June 

13, 2022 at 6:30 PM. / UPDATE: THE PLANNING COMMISSION VOTED 3-1 TO 
APPROVE THE APPLICATION WITH THE CONDITION THAT THERE IS A 50 FOOT 

BUFFER BETWEEN THE WETLANDS AND DEVELOPMENT AND THAT THE SETBACK 
FROM HIGHWAY 30 BE INCREASED.  
 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• 7-0976-02-027 Noble Vines Ph II G-Site Plan JUNE 2022 - Application (PDF) 

• 7-0976-02-027 Noble Vines Ph II G-Site Plan JUNE 2022 - Timeline (DOCX) 

13.B

Packet Pg. 79



13.B.a

Packet Pg. 80

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

-0
97

6-
02

-0
27

 N
o

b
le

 V
in

es
 P

h
 II

 G
-S

it
e 

P
la

n
 J

U
N

E
 2

02
2 

- 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
26

80
 :

 S
it

e 
P

la
n

 R
ev

ie
w

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 (

G
en

er
al

) 
P

IN
 #

 7
-0

97
6-



13.B.a

Packet Pg. 81

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

-0
97

6-
02

-0
27

 N
o

b
le

 V
in

es
 P

h
 II

 G
-S

it
e 

P
la

n
 J

U
N

E
 2

02
2 

- 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
26

80
 :

 S
it

e 
P

la
n

 R
ev

ie
w

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 (

G
en

er
al

) 
P

IN
 #

 7
-0

97
6-



13.B.a

Packet Pg. 82

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

-0
97

6-
02

-0
27

 N
o

b
le

 V
in

es
 P

h
 II

 G
-S

it
e 

P
la

n
 J

U
N

E
 2

02
2 

- 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
26

80
 :

 S
it

e 
P

la
n

 R
ev

ie
w

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 (

G
en

er
al

) 
P

IN
 #

 7
-0

97
6-



13.B.a

Packet Pg. 83

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

-0
97

6-
02

-0
27

 N
o

b
le

 V
in

es
 P

h
 II

 G
-S

it
e 

P
la

n
 J

U
N

E
 2

02
2 

- 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
26

80
 :

 S
it

e 
P

la
n

 R
ev

ie
w

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 (

G
en

er
al

) 
P

IN
 #

 7
-0

97
6-



13.B.a

Packet Pg. 84

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

-0
97

6-
02

-0
27

 N
o

b
le

 V
in

es
 P

h
 II

 G
-S

it
e 

P
la

n
 J

U
N

E
 2

02
2 

- 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
26

80
 :

 S
it

e 
P

la
n

 R
ev

ie
w

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 (

G
en

er
al

) 
P

IN
 #

 7
-0

97
6-



13.B.a

Packet Pg. 85

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

-0
97

6-
02

-0
27

 N
o

b
le

 V
in

es
 P

h
 II

 G
-S

it
e 

P
la

n
 J

U
N

E
 2

02
2 

- 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
26

80
 :

 S
it

e 
P

la
n

 R
ev

ie
w

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 (

G
en

er
al

) 
P

IN
 #

 7
-0

97
6-



13.B.a

Packet Pg. 86

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

-0
97

6-
02

-0
27

 N
o

b
le

 V
in

es
 P

h
 II

 G
-S

it
e 

P
la

n
 J

U
N

E
 2

02
2 

- 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
26

80
 :

 S
it

e 
P

la
n

 R
ev

ie
w

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 (

G
en

er
al

) 
P

IN
 #

 7
-0

97
6-



13.B.a

Packet Pg. 87

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

-0
97

6-
02

-0
27

 N
o

b
le

 V
in

es
 P

h
 II

 G
-S

it
e 

P
la

n
 J

U
N

E
 2

02
2 

- 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
26

80
 :

 S
it

e 
P

la
n

 R
ev

ie
w

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 (

G
en

er
al

) 
P

IN
 #

 7
-0

97
6-



13.B.a

Packet Pg. 88

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

-0
97

6-
02

-0
27

 N
o

b
le

 V
in

es
 P

h
 II

 G
-S

it
e 

P
la

n
 J

U
N

E
 2

02
2 

- 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
26

80
 :

 S
it

e 
P

la
n

 R
ev

ie
w

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 (

G
en

er
al

) 
P

IN
 #

 7
-0

97
6-



13.B.a

Packet Pg. 89

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

-0
97

6-
02

-0
27

 N
o

b
le

 V
in

es
 P

h
 II

 G
-S

it
e 

P
la

n
 J

U
N

E
 2

02
2 

- 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
26

80
 :

 S
it

e 
P

la
n



13.B.a

Packet Pg. 90

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

-0
97

6-
02

-0
27

 N
o

b
le

 V
in

es
 P

h
 II

 G
-S

it
e 

P
la

n
 J

U
N

E
 2

02
2 

- 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
26

80
 :

 S
it

e 
P

la
n



13.B.a

Packet Pg. 91

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

-0
97

6-
02

-0
27

 N
o

b
le

 V
in

es
 P

h
 II

 G
-S

it
e 

P
la

n
 J

U
N

E
 2

02
2 

- 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
26

80
 :

 S
it

e 
P

la
n



13.B.a

Packet Pg. 92

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

-0
97

6-
02

-0
27

 N
o

b
le

 V
in

es
 P

h
 II

 G
-S

it
e 

P
la

n
 J

U
N

E
 2

02
2 

- 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
26

80
 :

 S
it

e 
P

la
n



4902 

1 
 6/17/2022 1:49 PM 

Project Timeline 

Project Number: 220210 

Project Name: Noble Vines Phase 2 General Site Plan 

Applicant / Engineer: Claret Communities / Nikhil Duggirala, T&H 

Owner: Simz Investment Company, LLC 

City Review Engineer:  N/A 

 

• 4/11/22 – application received; incomplete – missing PDF, Owners Signature and Check (check 
received with submittal dated 10/19/2021) 

• 4/11/22 – emailed applicant about missing information and pre-development meeting.  

• 4/13/22 – received missing information.  

• 4/27/22 – Predevelopment meeting.  

• 6/13/22 - THE PLANNING COMMISSION VOTED 3-1 TO APPROVE THE APPLICATION WITH THE 
CONDITION THAT THERE IS A 50 FOOT BUFFER BETWEEN THE WETLANDS AND DEVELOPMENT 

AND THAT THE SETBACK FROM HIGHWAY 30 BE INCREASED. 

13.B.b

Packet Pg. 93

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

-0
97

6-
02

-0
27

 N
o

b
le

 V
in

es
 P

h
 II

 G
-S

it
e 

P
la

n
 J

U
N

E
 2

02
2 

- 
T

im
el

in
e 

 (
26

80
 :

 S
it

e 
P

la
n

 R
ev

ie
w

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 (

G
en

er
al

) 
P

IN
 #

 7
-0

97
6-

02
-



 City Council Meeting: 06/23/22 12:00 AM 
 7224 GA Highway 21 Department: Public Services 

 Port Wentworth, GA  31407 Category: Purchase 
  Prepared By: David Stahl 

 SCHEDULED Department Head: Omar Senati-Martinez 

  

 AGENDA ITEM (ID # 2694) DOC ID: 2694  

Updated: 6/17/2022 2:13 PM by David Stahl  Page 1 

Repairs to the Wastewater Treatment Plan UV System 

Issue/Item:  The City annually adopts a millage rate for the property within the city.    
 

Background: The Wastewater UV system are necessary in order to maintain compliance for 
fecal coliform in the plant effluent. The system is designed to have 3 operational banks 
 

Facts and Findings: Currently WWTP is operating on 1 UV bank and 2 of the 3 UV banks 

are out of service. The plant reported fecal coliform violations in May due to this issue , and 
it is possible we will have further violations if we do not repair the other banks. The quote 
provided by Trojan technologies the total amount is $56,137.00 per UV bank.  
 

Funding:  Budgeted line item 
 
Recommendation: Approval  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Port Wentworth - June 15th (PDF) 

13.C

Packet Pg. 94



 
 
3020 GORE ROAD 
LONDON, ONTARIO, CANADA  N5V 4T7 
T 519.457.3400  F 519.457.3030 
www.trojanuv.com 
 

3020 Gore Road, London, ON 
Canada N5V 4T7 

office (519) 457-3400   trojantechnologies.com 
Trojan Technologies Group ULC 

 

                                                                                         

QUOTE FOR: Port Wentworth 

Project # 511557 

 

 

ATTENTION: Omar Senati-Martinez 
 

 

CONTACT: Barron Futral CUSTOMER #: 091066 

VOICE: 205-557-3374 QUOTE #: 128344 

EMAIL: Bfutral@trojantechnologies.com QUOTE DATE: 2022-06-06 

PREVAILING WAGE: NO  REFERENCE: NA 

  LOB: W97 
 

 

 

Part Number Description Quantity Cost / EA Total 

917341-100 LAMP DRIVER KIT 8  $              1,031.50   $                  8,252.00  

794447-0RD LAMPS 32  $                  408.00   $               13,056.00  

316144 O-RING, SLEEVE  32  $                      1.00   $                        32.00  

327066 FITTING, INTER- 8  $                      2.00   $                        16.00  

327027 FITTING, INTER- 8  $                      1.50   $                        12.00  

327095 PLUG, RUBBER WI 12  $                      2.50   $                        30.00  

5066 GREASE, FOOD GREASE 2  $                    16.50   $                        33.00  

316553-018       BLST TRAY ASSY, 4  $              8,064.00   $               32,256.00  

SRV VISIT EXPENS One Day on site 1  $              2,450.00   $                  2,450.00  

FREIGHT         FREIGHT         1  $                           -     $                               -    
     

     $               56,137.00  
  *Labor rate includes all expenses, i.e., per diem, accommodation, vehicle rental, etc.  MINIMUM 4 HOURS 

**Travel expense is estimated airfare or mileage.  Actual expense incurred will be invoiced. 

 

Total Cost: $56,137.00 USD 

SCOPE OF WORK: 

• Installation of parts / reworking of modules 
 
 

DELIVERY TERMS: Delivery time is from receipt of a formal purchase order normal.  Items 

mentioned in this quote, F.O.B. London, Ontario, Canada and exclude freight. 

PAYMENT TERMS: Net 30 days on approved credit. 

QUOTE EXPIRY: 30 days from issue 
 

Subject to sales tax, where applicable.  Tax to be applied if not tax exempt. 

GST # R105405385 

 
All replacement parts used in Trojan service must be high quality proven Trojan replacement parts designed specifically for use with the Trojan 

equipment. Using genuine Trojan parts ensures your system remains validated and operates at peak performance. It also maintains your safety 

certifications, regulatory compliance, and your Trojan Lifetime Performance Guarantee. Trojan Certified Service cannot provide service support to 

Customers with a system where unknown replacement parts or parts other than parts approved by Trojan have been used. 

13.C.a

Packet Pg. 95

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

o
rt

 W
en

tw
o

rt
h

 -
 J

u
n

e 
15

th
  (

26
94

 :
 R

ep
ai

rs
 t

o
 t

h
e 

W
as

te
w

at
er

 T
re

at
m

en
t 

P
la

n
 U

V
 S

ys
te

m
)



2 of 5 

  

3020 Gore Road, London, ON 
Canada N5V 4T7 

office (519) 457-3400   trojantechnologies.com 
Trojan Technologies Group ULC 

  

 

 

Terms and Conditions of Sale 

This document sets forth the Terms & Conditions of Sale for goods manufactured and/or supplied, and services provided, 
by the seller entity identified on the purchase order (“SELLER”) and sold to the original purchaser thereof (“BUYER”). The 
term “SELLER” includes only SELLER, and none of its affiliates. Unless otherwise specifically stated in a previously-executed 
written purchase agreement signed by authorized representatives of SELLER and BUYER, these Terms & Conditions of Sale 
establish the rights, obligations and remedies of SELLER and BUYER which apply to this offer and any resulting order or 
contract for the sale of SELLER’s goods and/or services (“Products”). 

1. APPLICABLE TERMS & CONDITIONS: These Terms & Conditions of Sale are contained directly and/or by reference in 
SELLER’s proposal, offer, order acknowledgment, packing slip, and/or invoice documents. The first of the following acts 
constitutes an acceptance of SELLER’s offer and not a counteroffer and creates a contract of sale (“Contract”) in accordance 
with these Terms & Conditions of Sale: (i) BUYER’s issuance of a purchase order document against SELLER’s offer; (ii) 
acknowledgement of BUYER’s order by SELLER; or (iii) commencement of any performance by SELLER pursuant to 
BUYER’s order. Provisions contained in BUYER’s purchase documents (including electronic commerce interfaces) that 
materially alter, add to, or subtract from the provisions of these Terms & Conditions of Sale are not a part of the Contract. 

2. CANCELLATION AND RETURN: The whole or any part of this order may be cancelled only with the prior written 
consent of SELLER. If SELLER does consent to a cancellation, such consent will be given only upon payment of reasonable 
cancellation charges in an amount determined by SELLER. In addition, with respect to any Products returned on 
cancellation, BUYER will pay SELLER’s cost of placing the returned Products in a saleable condition, sales expenses 
incurred by SELLER in connection with such returned Products, a reasonable restocking charge and freight costs incurred 
in connection with the original shipment and in connection with returning such Products to SELLER, all in such amounts as 
are advised to the BUYER by SELLER. 

3. DELIVERY: Delivery will be accomplished EXW or CIP at the point of shipment (Incoterms 2020), unless otherwise 
expressly agreed between the parties. Legal title and risk of loss or damage pass to BUYER upon transfer to the first carrier, 
regardless of final destination and mode of transit. SELLER will use commercially reasonable efforts to deliver the Products 
ordered herein within SELLER’s normal lead-time necessary for SELLER to deliver the Products sold hereunder. Products 
will be boxed or crated as determined appropriate by SELLER for protection against normal handling and there will be an 
extra charge to the BUYER for additional packaging required by the BUYER with respect to waterproofing or other added 
protection. BUYER has sole responsibility for off-loading, storage and handling of the Products at the site. Where Buyer is 
responsible for any delay in the delivery date or installation date, the earlier of the date of delivery or the date on which the 
Products are ready for shipment by SELLER may be treated as the delivery date for purposes of determining the time of 
payment of the purchase price. Moreover, BUYER will be responsible for reasonable storage and insurance expenses with 
respect to such Products. Should BUYER fail to effect pick-up of Product as previously agreed in a timely manner, SELLER 
may, at its discretion, assess reasonable storage charges to the account of BUYER. 

4. INSPECTION: BUYER will promptly inspect and accept any Products delivered pursuant to this Contract after receipt of 
such Products. In the event the Products do not conform to any applicable specifications, BUYER will promptly notify 
SELLER of such nonconformance in writing. SELLER will have a reasonable opportunity to repair or replace the 
nonconforming Product at its option. BUYER will be deemed to have accepted any Products delivered hereunder and to 
have waived any such nonconformance for such Products unless a written notification pursuant to this paragraph is 
received by SELLER within thirty (30) days of delivery to BUYER destination on order. 

5. PRICES & ORDER SIZES: Prices do not include any charges for services such as insurance; brokerage fees; sales, use, 
inventory, or excise taxes; import or export duties; special financing fees; value added tax, income, or royalty taxes imposed 
outside the U.S. or Canada; consular fees; special permits or licenses; or other charges imposed upon the production, sale, 
distribution, or delivery of Products. BUYER will either pay any and all such charges or provide SELLER with acceptable 
exemption certificates, which obligation survives performance under this Contract. Installation, maintenance and any other 

13.C.a

Packet Pg. 96

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

o
rt

 W
en

tw
o

rt
h

 -
 J

u
n

e 
15

th
  (

26
94

 :
 R

ep
ai

rs
 t

o
 t

h
e 

W
as

te
w

at
er

 T
re

at
m

en
t 

P
la

n
 U

V
 S

ys
te

m
)



3 of 5 

  

3020 Gore Road, London, ON 
Canada N5V 4T7 

office (519) 457-3400   trojantechnologies.com 
Trojan Technologies Group ULC 

  

services which relate to the Products are not included unless specifically set forth in the quotation. SELLER reserves the 
right to establish minimum order sizes and will advise BUYER accordingly. Any orders below the minimum order size are 
subject to a fee as set out by SELLER. If SELLER’s delivery of Products surpasses one (1) year in length, then at least on an 
annual basis, or if changes to the Products are requested or needed, the parties shall conduct good faith discussions 
regarding changes to the prices for the Products, to reflect SELLER’s increased costs for which SELLER shall be entitled to 
additional fair and appropriate compensation. 

6. PAYMENTS: All payments must be made in agreed-to currency, normally Canadian or U.S. Dollars. Unless other payment 
terms are expressly set forth in the purchase order or otherwise required by the Seller, invoices are due and payable NET 
30 DAYS from date of the invoice, without regard to delays for inspection or transportation, with payments to be made by 
check to SELLER at the address listed in the purchase order or by bank transfer to the account obtainable from SELLER’s 
Accounts Receivable Manager. In the event payments are not made or not made in a timely manner, SELLER may, in 
addition to all other remedies provided at law, either: (a) declare BUYER’s performance in breach and terminate this 
Contract for default; (b) withhold future shipments until delinquent payments are made; (c) deliver future shipments on a 
cash-with-order or cash-in-advance basis even after the delinquency is cured; (d) charge interest on the outstanding 
balance at a rate of 1.5% per month or the maximum rate permitted by law, if lower, for each month or part thereof that 
there is an outstanding balance plus applicable storage charges and/or inventory carrying charges; (e) repossess the 
Products for which payment has not been made; (f) pursue other collection efforts and recover all associated costs 
including reasonable attorney’s fees; or (g) combine any of the above rights and remedies as is practicable and permitted 
by law. BUYER is prohibited from setting off any and all monies owed under this Contract from any other sums, whether 
liquidated or not, that are or may be due to the BUYER, which arise out of a different transaction with SELLER or any of its 
affiliates. Should BUYER’s financial condition become unsatisfactory to SELLER in its discretion, SELLER may require 
payment in advance or other security. If BUYER fails to meet these requirements, SELLER may treat such failure as 
reasonable grounds for repudiation of this Contract, in which case reasonable cancellation charges shall be due to SELLER. 
BUYER hereby grants SELLER a security interest in the Products, wherever located, and whether now existing or hereafter 
arising or acquired from time to time, and in all accessions thereto and replacements or modifications thereof, as well as all 
proceeds of the foregoing, to secure payment in full of all amounts to Seller, which payment releases the security interest 
but only if such payment could not be considered an avoidable transfer under applicable laws. The security interest granted 
hereby constitutes a purchase money security interest under the applicable Uniform Commercial Code or Personal 
Property Security Act or other applicable law, and SELLER is authorized to make whatever registration or notification or 
take such other action as SELLER deems necessary or desirable to perfect such security interest. BUYER’s insolvency, 
bankruptcy, assignment for the benefit of creditors, or dissolution or termination of the existence of BUYER, constitutes a 
default under this Contract and affords SELLER all of the remedies of a secured creditor under applicable law, as well as the 
remedies stated above for late payment or non-payment. 

7. LIMITED WARRANTY: Unless specifically provided otherwise in SELLER’s quotation, SELLER provides the following 
Limited Warranty. SELLER warrants that Products sold hereunder will be free from defects in material and workmanship 
and will, when used in accordance with the manufacturer’s operating and maintenance instructions, conform to any 
express written warranty pertaining to the specific goods purchased, which for Products is for a period of twelve (12) 
months from delivery. SELLER warrants that services furnished hereunder will be free from defects in workmanship for a 
period of ninety (90) days from the completion of the services. Products repaired or replaced are not covered by any 
warranty except to the extent repaired or replaced by SELLER, an authorized representative of SELLER, or under specific 
instructions by SELLER, in which cases, the Products will be covered under warranty up to the end of the warranty period 
applicable to the original Products. The above warranties do not include the cost of shipping and handling of returned 
items. Parts provided by SELLER in the performance of services may be new or refurbished parts functioning equivalent to 
new parts. Any non-functioning parts that are repaired by SELLER shall become the property of SELLER. No warranties are 
extended to consumable items such as, without limitation, light bulbs, and for normal wear and tear. All other guarantees, 
warranties, conditions and representations, either express or implied, whether arising under any statute, law, commercial 
usage or otherwise, including implied warranties of merchantability and fitness for a particular purpose, are hereby 
excluded. The sole remedy for Products not meeting this Limited Warranty is replacement, credit or refund of the purchase 
price, as determined by SELLER in its sole discretion. This remedy will not be deemed to have failed of its essential purpose 
so long as SELLER is willing to provide such replacement, credit or refund. To make a warranty claim, BUYER must notify 
SELLER in writing within 5 days of discovery of the defect in question. This notification must include a description of the 
problem, a copy of the applicable operator’s log, a copy of BUYER’s maintenance record and any analytical results detailing 
the problem. Any warranty hereunder or performance guarantees shall only be enforceable if (a) all equipment is properly 
installed, inspected regularly, and is in good working order, (b) all operations are consistent with SELLER 

13.C.a

Packet Pg. 97

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

o
rt

 W
en

tw
o

rt
h

 -
 J

u
n

e 
15

th
  (

26
94

 :
 R

ep
ai

rs
 t

o
 t

h
e 

W
as

te
w

at
er

 T
re

at
m

en
t 

P
la

n
 U

V
 S

ys
te

m
)



4 of 5 

  

3020 Gore Road, London, ON 
Canada N5V 4T7 

office (519) 457-3400   trojantechnologies.com 
Trojan Technologies Group ULC 

  

recommendations, (c) operating conditions at the installation site have not materially changed and remain within 
anticipated specifications, and (d) no reasonably unforeseeable circumstances exist or arise. 

8. INDEMNIFICATION: Indemnification applies to a party and to such party’s successors-in-interest, assignees, affiliates, 
directors, officers, and employees (“Indemnified Parties”). SELLER is responsible for and will defend, indemnify and hold 
harmless the BUYER Indemnified Parties against all losses, claims, expenses or damages which may result from accident, 
injury, damage, or death due to SELLER’s breach of the Limited Warranty. BUYER is responsible for and will defend, 
indemnify and hold harmless SELLER Indemnified Parties against all losses, claims, expenses, or damages which may result 
from accident, injury, damage, or death due to the negligence or misuse or misapplication of any Products or the breach of 
any provision of this Contract by the BUYER or any third party affiliated or in privity with BUYER. 

9. PATENT PROTECTION: Subject to all limitations of liability provided herein, SELLER will, with respect to any Products 
of SELLER’s design or manufacture, indemnify BUYER from any and all damages and costs as finally determined by a court 
of competent jurisdiction in any suit for infringement of any U.S. or Canadian patent (or European patent for Products that 
SELLER sells to BUYER for end use in a member state of the E.U.) that has issued as of the delivery date, solely by reason of 
the sale or normal use of any Products sold to BUYER hereunder and from reasonable expenses incurred by BUYER in 
defense of such suit if SELLER does not undertake the defense thereof, provided that BUYER promptly notifies SELLER of 
such suit and offers SELLER either (i) full and exclusive control of the defense of such suit when Products of SELLER only 
are involved, or (ii) the right to participate in the defense of such suit when products other than those of SELLER are also 
involved. SELLER’s warranty as to use patents only applies to infringement arising solely out of the inherent operation of 
the Products according to their applications as envisioned by SELLER’s specifications. In case the Products are in such suit 
held to constitute infringement and the use of the Products is enjoined, SELLER will, at its own expense and at its option, 
either procure for BUYER the right to continue using such Products or replace them with non-infringing products, or 
modify them so they become non-infringing, or remove the Products and refund the purchase price (prorated for 
depreciation) and the transportation costs thereof. The foregoing states the entire liability of SELLER for patent 
infringement by the Products. Further, to the same extent as set forth in SELLER’s above obligation to BUYER, BUYER 
agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless SELLER for patent infringement related to (x) any goods manufactured to 
the BUYER’s design, (y) services provided in accordance with the BUYER’s instructions, or (z) SELLER’s Products when 
used in combination with any other devices, parts or software not provided by SELLER hereunder. 

10. TRADEMARKS AND OTHER LABELS: BUYER agrees not to remove or alter any indicia of manufacturing origin or 
patent numbers contained on or within the Products, including without limitation the serial numbers or trademarks on 
nameplates or cast, molded or machined components. 

11. SOFTWARE AND INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY: All licenses to SELLER’s separately-provided software products are 
subject to the separate software license agreement(s) accompanying the software media. In the absence of such express 
licenses and for all other software, SELLER grants BUYER only a personal, non-exclusive license to access and use the 
software provided by SELLER with Products purchased hereunder solely as necessary for BUYER to enjoy the benefit of the 
Products. A portion of the software may contain or consist of open source software, which BUYER may use under the terms 
and conditions of the specific license under which the open source software is distributed. BUYER agrees that it will be 
bound by all such license agreements. Title to software remains with the applicable licensor(s). All SELLER contributions to 
the Products, the results of the services, and any other work designed or provided by SELLER hereunder may contain or 
result in statutory and non-statutory Intellectual Property, including but not limited to patentable subject matter or trade 
secrets; and all such Intellectual Property remains the sole property of SELLER; and BUYER shall not disclose (except to the 
extent inherently necessary during any resale of Product sold hereunder), disassemble, decompile, or otherwise reverse 
engineer said contributions, or any results of the Services, or any Products, or otherwise attempt to learn the underlying 
processes, source code, structure, algorithms, or ideas. 

12. PROPRIETARY INFORMATION AND PRIVACY: “Proprietary Information” means any information, technical data, or 
know-how in whatever form, whether documented, contained in machine readable or physical components, mask works or 
artwork, or otherwise, which SELLER considers proprietary, including but not limited to service and maintenance manuals. 
BUYER and its customers, employees, and agents will keep confidential all such Proprietary Information obtained directly 
or indirectly from SELLER and will not transfer or disclose it without SELLER’s prior written consent, or use it for the 
manufacture, procurement, servicing, or calibration of Products or any similar products, or cause such products to be 
manufactured, serviced, or calibrated by or procured from any other source, or reproduce or otherwise appropriate it. All 
such Proprietary Information remains SELLER’s property. No right or license is granted to BUYER or its customers, 

13.C.a

Packet Pg. 98

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

o
rt

 W
en

tw
o

rt
h

 -
 J

u
n

e 
15

th
  (

26
94

 :
 R

ep
ai

rs
 t

o
 t

h
e 

W
as

te
w

at
er

 T
re

at
m

en
t 

P
la

n
 U

V
 S

ys
te

m
)



5 of 5 

  

3020 Gore Road, London, ON 
Canada N5V 4T7 

office (519) 457-3400   trojantechnologies.com 
Trojan Technologies Group ULC 

  

employees or agents, expressly or by implication, with respect to the Proprietary Information or any patent right or other 
proprietary right of SELLER, except for the limited use licenses implied by law. In respect of personal data supplied by 
BUYER to SELLER, BUYER warrants that is duly authorized to submit and disclose these data, including but not limited to 
obtaining data subjects´ informed consent. SELLER will manage BUYER’s information and personal data in accordance with 
its Privacy Policy, a copy of which is available to Buyer upon request. In respect of other data and information that SELLER 
may receive in connection with BUYER´s use of the Products including without limitation data that are captured by the 
Products and transmitted to SELLER, BUYER hereby grants SELLER a non-exclusive, worldwide, royalty-free, perpetual, 
non-revocable license to use, compile, distribute, display, store, process, reproduce, or create derivative works of such data 
as needed for Product operation and maintenance, and to aggregate such data for use in an anonymous manner, solely to 
facilitate marketing, sales and R&D activities of SELLER and its affiliates. 

13. SPECIAL TOOLS, DIES, JIGS, FIXTURES AND PATTERNS: Any tools, dies, jigs, fixtures, patterns and similar items 
which are included or required in connection with the manufacture and/or supply of the Products will remain the property 
of SELLER without credit to the BUYER. SELLER assumes the cost for maintenance and replacement of such items and shall 
have the right to discard and scrap any such item after it has been inactive for a minimum of one year, without credit to the 
BUYER. 

14. CHANGES AND ADDITIONAL CHARGES: SELLER reserves the right to make design changes or improvements to any 
products of the same general class as Products being delivered hereunder without liability or obligation to incorporate such 
changes or improvements to Products ordered by BUYER unless agreed upon in writing before the Products’ delivery date. 

15. SITE ACCESS / PREPARATION / WORKER SAFETY / ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE: In connection with services 
provided by SELLER, BUYER agrees to permit prompt access to equipment. BUYER assumes full responsibility to back-up 
or otherwise protect its data against loss, damage or destruction before services are performed. BUYER is the operator and 
in full control of its premises, including those areas where SELLER employees or contractors are performing service, repair, 
and maintenance activities. BUYER will ensure that all necessary measures are taken for safety and security of working 
conditions, sites, and installations during the performance of any services. BUYER is the generator of any resulting wastes, 
including without limitation hazardous wastes. BUYER is solely responsible to arrange for the disposal of any wastes at its 
own expense. BUYER will, at its own expense, provide SELLER employees and contractors working on BUYER’s premises 
with all information and training required under applicable safety compliance regulations and BUYER’s policies. SELLER 
has no responsibility for the supervision or actions of BUYER’s employees or contractors or for non-SELLER items (e.g., 
chemicals, equipment) and disclaims all liability and responsibility for any loss or damage that may be suffered as a result 
of such actions or items, or any other actions or items not under SELLER’s control. 

16. LIMITATIONS ON USE: BUYER will not use any Products for any purpose other than those identified in SELLER’s 
catalogs and literature as intended uses. Unless SELLER has advised the BUYER in writing, in no event will BUYER use any 
Products in drugs, food additives, food, or cosmetics, or medical applications for humans or animals. In no event will BUYER 
use in any application any Product that requires FDA 510(k) clearance unless and only to the extent the Product has such 
clearance. BUYER will not sell, transfer, export, or re-export any SELLER Products or technology for use in activities which 
involve the design, development, production, use, or stockpiling of nuclear, chemical, or biological weapons or missiles, nor 
use SELLER Products or technology in any facility which engages in activities relating to such weapons. Unless the “ship-to” 
address is in California, U.S.A., the Products are not intended for sale in California and may lack markings required by 
California Proposition 65; accordingly, unless BUYER has ordered Products specifying a California ship-to address, BUYER 
will not sell or deliver any SELLER Products for use in California. Any warranty granted by SELLER is void if any goods 
covered by such warranty are used for any purpose not permitted hereunder. 

17. EXPORT AND IMPORT LICENSES AND COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS: Unless otherwise expressly agreed, BUYER is 
responsible for obtaining any required export or import licenses necessary for Product delivery. BUYER will comply with 
all laws and regulations applicable to the installation or use of all Product, including applicable import and export control 
laws and regulations of the U.S., E.U., and any other country having proper jurisdiction, and will obtain all necessary export 
or import licenses in connection with any subsequent export, re-export, transfer, and use of all Product and technology 
delivered hereunder. BUYER will not sell, transfer, export, or re-export any SELLER Product or technology for use in 
activities which involve the design, development, production, use or stockpiling of nuclear, chemical, or biological weapons 
or missiles, nor use SELLER Product or technology in any facility which engages in activities relating to such weapons. 
BUYER will comply with all local, national, and other laws of all jurisdictions globally relating to anti-corruption, bribery, 
extortion, kickbacks, or similar matters which are applicable to BUYER’s business activities in connection with this 

13.C.a

Packet Pg. 99

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

o
rt

 W
en

tw
o

rt
h

 -
 J

u
n

e 
15

th
  (

26
94

 :
 R

ep
ai

rs
 t

o
 t

h
e 

W
as

te
w

at
er

 T
re

at
m

en
t 

P
la

n
 U

V
 S

ys
te

m
)



6 of 5 

  

3020 Gore Road, London, ON 
Canada N5V 4T7 

office (519) 457-3400   trojantechnologies.com 
Trojan Technologies Group ULC 

  

Contract, including but not limited to the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act of 1977, as amended (the “FCPA”). BUYER 
agrees that no payment of money or provision of anything of value will be offered, promised, paid, or transferred, directly 
or indirectly, by any person or entity, to any government official, government employee, or employee of any company 
owned in part by a government, political party, political party official, or candidate for any government office or political 
party office to induce such organizations or persons to use their authority or influence to obtain or retain an improper 
business advantage for BUYER or for SELLER, or which otherwise constitute or have the purpose or effect of public or 
commercial bribery, acceptance of or acquiescence in extortion, kickbacks, or other unlawful or improper means of 
obtaining business or any improper advantage, with respect to any of BUYER’s activities related to this Contract. SELLER 
asks BUYER to “Speak Up!” if aware of any violation of law, regulation, or our Code of Conduct (“CoC”) in relation to this 
Contract. See www.danaherintegrity.com and www.danaher.com/how-we-work/integrity-and-compliance for a copy of the 
CoC and for access to our Helpline portal. 

18. RELATIONSHIP OF PARTIES: BUYER is not an agent or representative of SELLER and will not present itself as such 
under any circumstances, unless and to the extent it has been formally screened by SELLER’s compliance department and 
received a separate duly-authorized letter from SELLER setting forth the scope and limitations of such authorization. 

19. FORCE MAJEURE: SELLER is excused from performance of its obligations under this Contract to the extent caused by 
acts or omissions that are beyond its control, including but not limited to Government embargoes, blockages, seizures or 
freezing of assets, delays, or refusals to grant an export or import license, or the suspension or revocation thereof, or any 
other acts of any Government; fires, floods, severe weather conditions, or any other acts of God; quarantines; labor strikes 
or lockouts; riots; strife; insurrections; civil disobedience or acts of criminals or terrorists; war; material shortages or 
delays in deliveries to SELLER by third parties. In the event of the existence of any force majeure circumstances, the period 
of time for delivery, payment terms, and payments under any letters of credit will be extended for a period of time equal to 
the period of delay. If the force majeure circumstances extend for six months, SELLER may, at its option, terminate this 
Contract without penalty and without being deemed in default or in breach thereof. 

20. NON-ASSIGNMENT AND WAIVER: BUYER will not transfer or assign this Contract or any rights or interests hereunder 
without SELLER’s prior written consent. Failure of either party to insist upon strict performance of any provision of this 
Contract, or to exercise any right or privilege contained herein, or the waiver of any breach of the terms or conditions of 
this Contract, will not be construed as thereafter waiving any such terms, conditions, rights, or privileges, and the same will 
continue and remain in force and effect as if no waiver had occurred. 

21. FUNDS TRANSFERS: BUYER and SELLER both recognize that there is a risk of banking fraud when individuals 
impersonating a business demand payment under new mailing or banking transfer instructions. To avoid this risk, BUYER 
must verbally confirm any new or changed mailing or banking transfer instructions by calling SELLER and speaking with 
SELLER’s Accounts Receivable Manager before transferring any monies using the new instructions. Both parties agree that 
they will not institute mailing or banking transfer instruction changes and require immediate payment under the new 
instructions, but will instead provide a ten (10) day grace period to verify any mailing or banking transfer instruction 
changes before any new or outstanding payments are due using the new instructions. 

22. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY: None of SELLER, its successors-in-interest, assignees, affiliates, directors, officers, 
and employees will be liable to BUYER under any circumstances for any special, treble, incidental, or 
consequential damages, including without limitation, damage to or loss of property other than for the Products 
purchased hereunder; damages incurred in installation, repair, or replacement; lost profits, revenue, or 
opportunity; loss of use; losses resulting from or related to downtime of the Products or inaccurate measurements 
or reporting; the cost of substitute products; or claims of BUYER’s customers for such damages, howsoever caused, 
and whether based on warranty, contract, and/or tort (including negligence, strict liability or otherwise). The total 
liability of SELLER, its successors-in-interest, assignees, affiliates, directors, officers, and employees arising out of 
the performance or nonperformance hereunder, or SELLER’s obligations in connection with the design, 
manufacture, sale, delivery, and/or use of Products, will in no circumstance exceed the amount actually paid to 
SELLER for Products delivered hereunder. 

23. APPLICABLE LAW AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION: All issues relating to the construction, validity, interpretation, 
enforcement, and performance of this agreement and the rights and obligations of SELLER and the BUYER hereunder shall 
be governed by the laws of the Province of Ontario and the federal laws of Canada applicable therein. Any provisions of the 
International Sale of Goods Act or any convention on contracts for the international sale of goods shall not be applicable to 

13.C.a

Packet Pg. 100

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

o
rt

 W
en

tw
o

rt
h

 -
 J

u
n

e 
15

th
  (

26
94

 :
 R

ep
ai

rs
 t

o
 t

h
e 

W
as

te
w

at
er

 T
re

at
m

en
t 

P
la

n
 U

V
 S

ys
te

m
)

http://www.danaherintegrity.com/
https://www.danaher.com/how-we-work/integrity-and-compliance


7 of 5 

  

3020 Gore Road, London, ON 
Canada N5V 4T7 

office (519) 457-3400   trojantechnologies.com 
Trojan Technologies Group ULC 

  

this agreement. The parties submit to and consent to the non-exclusive jurisdiction of courts located in the Province of 
Ontario. 

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT & MODIFICATION: These Terms & Conditions of Sale constitute the entire agreement between 
the parties and supersede any prior agreements or representations, whether oral or written. No change to or modification 
of these Terms & Conditions shall be binding upon SELLER unless in a written instrument specifically referencing that it is 
amending these Terms & Conditions of Sale and signed by an authorized representative of SELLER. SELLER rejects any 
additional or inconsistent Terms & Conditions of Sale offered by BUYER at any time, whether or not such terms or 
conditions materially alter the Terms & Conditions herein and irrespective of SELLER’s acceptance of BUYER’s order for the 
described goods and services. 

 

Terms and Conditions Covering Sales of Configured-to-Order Projects and Systems 

In addition to all terms and conditions above, the following sections apply to sales of Configured-to-Order Projects, 
Systems, and the like: 

101. PAYMENT. 
101.1 Payments will be made per the schedule of payment events set forth in Seller’s Quotation; provided that if the Start-
Up Date (as defined below) is less than 30 days after the Acceptance Date, 90% of the purchase price is due on or before the 
Start-Up Date. 

101.2. In the event that achievement of a scheduled payment event is delayed or suspended due to the Buyer’s convenience 
or other reasons for which the Buyer or its representatives is responsible, such payment event will be deemed to have 
occurred and Seller shall be entitled to invoice Buyer as if achievement of such payment event had been achieved. In such 
circumstances, Buyer must notify Seller in writing of the reasons for the delay and anticipated duration of the delay. Seller 
will mark the Products (or parts thereof) as the Buyer’s property and shall store the Products (or parts thereof) in a 
segregated area until actual delivery. 

102. DELIVERY 
102.1 SELLER will request the BUYER to provide a firm date for delivery of the Products to the project site (the “Delivery 
Date”) which SELLER will then use to establish the production schedule for the Products. The Delivery Date will then be 
binding on the BUYER except for any changes made in accordance with the provisions below. 

102.2 The BUYER can request a rescheduling of the Delivery Date on one occasion only by notifying SELLER in writing not 
less than four weeks prior to the scheduled Delivery Date. The BUYER may request that the Delivery Date be extended by a 
period up to six weeks, without penalty, but may not request that the Delivery Date be moved forward. The BUYER may 
also request that the Delivery Date be extended beyond a six week period but, SELLER may not agree to such extension, 
beyond the maximum six week extension period 

102.3 SELLER may, in its sole discretion, agree to change the Delivery Date on more than one occasion or if less than four 
weeks’ prior notice is provided of a requested change, but is under no obligation to do so. 

102.4 SELLER reserves the right to reschedule the Delivery Date to a date prior to or subsequent to the scheduled Delivery 
Date in order to accommodate its shipping, production or other requirements. This right to reschedule will be applicable 
unless otherwise agreed in writing by an authorized officer of SELLER. SELLER will provide the BUYER or its representative 
with a minimum of 24 hours notice of any such rescheduling. 

102.5 Where any change to the Delivery Date is made at BUYER’s request, for all purposes with respect to the warranty and 
payment provided by SELLER in connection with the Products, the initial Delivery Date will be considered to be the 
Delivery Date regardless of any change later made to the Delivery Date. 

13.C.a

Packet Pg. 101

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

o
rt

 W
en

tw
o

rt
h

 -
 J

u
n

e 
15

th
  (

26
94

 :
 R

ep
ai

rs
 t

o
 t

h
e 

W
as

te
w

at
er

 T
re

at
m

en
t 

P
la

n
 U

V
 S

ys
te

m
)



8 of 5 

  

3020 Gore Road, London, ON 
Canada N5V 4T7 

office (519) 457-3400   trojantechnologies.com 
Trojan Technologies Group ULC 

  

103. ACCEPTANCE 
103.1 During the period between the Delivery Date and the Start-up Date, the BUYER shall prepare the Products and the 
project site for installation and start-up and, unless otherwise agreed in writing by an authorized representative of SELLER, 
shall complete acceptance testing with respect to the Products. The Products shall be deemed to be accepted on the earliest 
to occur of the following dates (the “Acceptance Date”): (a) that date on which the Products can function in either manual or 
automatic operation and provide disinfection in accordance with criteria specified in the Quotation, or (b) 60 days after the 
Delivery Date. 

103.2 All amounts which remain owing by the BUYER for the Products, including any amount which is specified to be 
payable on the Acceptance Date, will be paid by the BUYER to SELLER within 30 days after the Acceptance Date, unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by an authorized representative of SELLER. 

103.3 Written notification must be given by the BUYER to SELLER within seven days after the Acceptance Date listing any 
outstanding deficiencies with respect to the Products and SELLER will use all reasonable efforts to correct such deficiencies 
promptly. 

104. START-UP 
104.1 SELLER will request a firm date for start-up of the Equipment (the “Start-Up Date”). Trojan will then schedule its 
technician to be on-site for the Start-up Date. The Start-up Date is binding except for any changes made in accordance with 
the provisions below. 

104.2 On the Start-up Date, BUYER must have the Equipment and site ready as provided in the Installation Preparation 
Checklist contained in the Contractor Installation Package sent to BUYER, and must have paid all amounts then due and 
payable to SELLER. 

104.3 BUYER can request a rescheduling of the Start-up Date by notifying SELLER in writing not less than three weeks prior 
to the Start-up Date. BUYER may request that the Start-up Date be extended, but may not request that the Start-up Date be 
moved forward. SELLER requires a minimum extension period of two weeks between the existing Start-up Date and the 
requested new Start-up Date in order to reschedule its technician. 

104.4 SELLER may, in its sole discretion, agree to reschedule the Start-up Date where a BUYER requests less than a two 
week extension but is under no obligation to do so. In the event that SELLER does agree to less than a two week extension 
or that BUYER requests more than two changes to the Start-up Date, BUYER will be charged an administration fee in an 
amount determined by SELLER. 

104.5 SELLER reserves the right to reschedule the Start-up Date to a date which is prior to or subsequent to the scheduled 
Start-up Date in order to accommodate its resource availability. This right to reschedule will be applicable unless otherwise 
agreed in writing by an authorized officer of SELLER. SELLER will provide BUYER or its representative with a minimum of 
72 hours notice of any such change to the Start-up Date. 

104.6 In the event that SELLER’S technician arrives at the project site and finds that the Equipment or the project site is not 
ready for start-up as defined in the Contractor Installation Package, or any amounts then due and payable to SELLER 
remain unpaid, BUYER may either: 

(a) provided all amounts then due and payable to SELLER have been paid, issue a purchase order for all costs involved in 
having SELLER correct the deficiencies, or 
(b) have SELLER’S technician leave the site and then reschedule the Start-up Date to a date when all deficiencies will be 
corrected and the Equipment will be ready for start-up as defined in the Contractor Installation Package. If BUYER selects 
this option, the cost of rescheduling will be not less than a minimum amount specified by SELLER, with the final cost being 
determined by SELLER based on its costs and expenses incurred in connection with the rescheduling. 

13.C.a

Packet Pg. 102

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

o
rt

 W
en

tw
o

rt
h

 -
 J

u
n

e 
15

th
  (

26
94

 :
 R

ep
ai

rs
 t

o
 t

h
e 

W
as

te
w

at
er

 T
re

at
m

en
t 

P
la

n
 U

V
 S

ys
te

m
)



 City Council Meeting: 06/23/22 12:00 AM 
 7224 GA Highway 21 Department: All 

 Port Wentworth, GA  31407 Category: Resolution 
  Prepared By: Zahnay Smoak 

 SCHEDULED Department Head: Steve Davis 

  

 AGENDA ITEM (ID # 2686) DOC ID: 2686  

Updated: 6/16/2022 12:33 PM by Zahnay Smoak  Page 1 

Service Delivery Strategy Resolution 

Issue/Item:  Service Delivery Strategy (SDS) process gives local governments and 
authorities the opportunity to reach agreement on the delivery of services in an effective 
and cost-efficient manner to Georgia's citizens. Georgia DCA sets the perimeters and 
the Savannah Metropolitan Commission hosted the meetings for Chatham County and 
all of our cities. 
 
 

Background: SDS was last past in 2016.  Our City Manager and the department heads 
participation in a series of meetings and discussions involving their perspective areas 
and ensured that Port Wentworth was well represented.   
 

Facts and Findings: SDS allows the partnership of local governments to minimize 
duplication of services and the costs associated.  It also provides a method of resolving 
disputes among service providers regarding service delivery, funding equity and land 
use. 

 
 

Funding:  N/A 
 

Recommendation: Approve 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• SDS Resolution_City_v2_051922 (DOCX) 

13.D

Packet Pg. 103



STATE OF GEORGIA 

CITY OF 

__________________

_______ 

RESOLUTION NO.  

 

 

A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE THE CITY OF PORT WENTWORTH, CHATHAM 

COUNTY EXTEND THE EXISTING SERVICE DELIVERY STRATEGY 

AGREEMENT UNTIL OCTOBER 31, 2026; AND TO AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR TO 

EXECUTE A GEORGIA DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY AFFAIRS FORM 4 

CERTIFICATION FOR REVISING AND ADDING TO THE SERVICE DELIVERY 

STRATEGY AND ANY OTHER DOCUMENTATION THAT MAY BE REQUIRED 

FOR THE EXTENSION OF THE CHATHAM COUNTY SERVICE DELIVERY 

STRATEGY. 

 

 
WHEREAS, the governing authority of the City of Port Wentworth, Georgia is the 

Mayor and Council; and 

WHEREAS, the City has entered into a Service Delivery Strategy (SDS) Agreement 

with Chatham County and the other municipalities of Chatham County; and 

WHEREAS, the current Service Delivery Strategy Agreement that was approved by 

the Georgia Department of Community Affairs on December 13, 2016, is set to expire on 

October 31, 2026; and 

WHEREAS, Chatham County is required to update and submit its Comprehensive Plan 

to the Georgia Department of Community Affairs on or before October 31, 2026, and that 

updating, pursuant to O.C.G.A. § 36-70-20, triggers the requirement to update or extend the 

current Service Delivery Strategy Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Port Wentworth, Chatham County, and the other 

municipalities of Chatham County desire to update and extend the existing Service Delivery 

Strategy Agreement until October 31, 2026; and 

WHEREAS, this resolution will benefit the health, safety, and welfare of the residents 

of the City of Port Wentworth. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED THAT: the  

 

City of Port Wentworth hereby authorizes the Mayor to execute a Georgia Department of  

 

13.D.a

Packet Pg. 104

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

D
S

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
_C

it
y_

v2
_0

51
92

2 
 (

26
86

 :
 S

er
vi

ce
 D

el
iv

er
y 

S
tr

at
eg

y 
R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

)



STATE OF GEORGIA 

CITY OF 

__________________

_______ 

RESOLUTION NO.  

 

 

Community Affairs Form 4 Certification for Revision of the Existing SDS and any other 

documentation that may be required for the extension of the current Chatham County Service 

Delivery Strategy until October 31, 2026. 

So Resolved, this ______ day of ________, 2022. 

 

 

 
CITY OF PORT WENTWORTH, GEORGIA 

  

 

 

 

____________________, Mayor 

13.D.a

Packet Pg. 105

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

D
S

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
_C

it
y_

v2
_0

51
92

2 
 (

26
86

 :
 S

er
vi

ce
 D

el
iv

er
y 

S
tr

at
eg

y 
R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

)



 City Council Meeting: 06/23/22 12:00 AM 
 7224 GA Highway 21 Department: All 

 Port Wentworth, GA  31407 Category: Resolution 
  Prepared By: Zahnay Smoak 

 SCHEDULED Department Head: Steve Davis 

  

 AGENDA ITEM (ID # 2689) DOC ID: 2689  

Updated: 6/17/2022 1:46 PM by David Stahl  Page 1 

Downtown Development Authority Resolution 

Issue/Item: Port Wentworth previously had a valid Downtown Development Authority 
(“DDA”), which has gone dormant and is no longer meeting or conducting business. 
 

Background: Mayor and Council recognize the need to revitalize and redevelop the 

business districts of the City by developing and promoting for the public good and general 
welfare trade, commerce, and employment opportunities and promote the general welfare 
by creating a climate favorable to the location of new industry, trade, and commerce and 

the development of existing industry, trade, and commerce within the City. 

 

Facts and Findings: Mayor and Council are authorized through State law to appoint new 
Directors, to set the geographical area of the DDA, among other powers. The City will need 

to coordinate with the Secretary of State’s office to provide documentation of the 
resurrected DDA, and for the newly reformed DDA to hold meetings and conduct business.  
 

This Resolution provides and reaffirms Mayor and Council’s commitment to revitalizing and 
redeveloping the City and the City’s business districts with the help and coordination of the 
City’s DDA.  

 
Mayor and Council will also need to appoint the seven (7) Directors to fully reconstitute the 

City’s currently dormant DDA. Such names and nominations are not contained within this 
Resolution. 
 

 

RESULT:  

MOVER:   

SECONDER:  

AYES:  

 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• DDA - Resolution to Resurrect  (DOCX) 

13.E

Packet Pg. 106



 Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION No. R2022-0602 

STATE OF GEORGIA 

COUNTY OF CHATHAM 

CITY OF PORT WENTWORTH 

 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF PORT WENTWORTH 

 

A RESOLUTION TO RESURRECT THE DORMANT CITY OF  

PORT WENTWORTH DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY;  

TO AUTHORIZE CITY STAFF TO EFFECTUATE SAME; TO REPEAL 

CONFLICTING RESOLUTIONS; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council of Port Wentworth previously authorized, 
constituted, and validly registered a Downtown Development Authority (“DDA”), to wit: the City 

of Port Wentworth Downtown Development Authority, in 2001; 
 

WHEREAS, the original area of the City’s DDA included the entire geographical area and 
corporate boundaries of the City of Port Wentworth;  

 
WHEREAS, since that time, the City’s DDA has become dormant and no longer 

meeting or conducting business; 
 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council recognize the need to revitalize and redevelop 
the business districts of the City by developing and promoting for the public good and general 

welfare trade, commerce, and employment opportunities and promote the general welfare by 
creating a climate favorable to the location of new industry, trade, and commerce and the 

development of existing industry, trade, and commerce within the City; 
 

WHEREAS, Georgia law permits the Mayor and Council to resurrect the City’s 
dormant DDA and to make other changes and updates to the City’s DDA; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the citizens of the City to resurrect the City’s 

dormant DDA and to make other changes and updates to the City’s DDA . 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF 

PORT WENTWORTH, GEORGIA, in regular meeting assembled and pursuant to lawful 

authority thereof, as follows: 
 

1. The Mayor and Council determine there is a need to revitalize and redevelop the 
business districts of the City, and direct the City Manager and City staff to take such 

actions deemed necessary or advisable to resurrect and bring back the City’s dormant 
Downtown Development Authority. 

  
2. The Mayor and Council determine the entire corporate boundaries as enumerated 

in the City’s Charter, thus all areas within the municipal boundaries of the City of 
Port Wentworth, constitutes the City’s central business district. The Mayor and 

13.E.a

Packet Pg. 107

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

D
A

 -
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 t
o

 R
es

u
rr

ec
t 

  (
26

89
 :

 D
o

w
n

to
w

n
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

)



 Page 2 of 2 

Council reaffirm and state that all areas within the municipal boundaries of the 
City of Port Wentworth, as enumerated as the entire corporate boundaries in the 

City’s Charter, constitutes the City’s central business district and the geographical 
area of the City’s Downtown Development Authority.  

 
3.  All Resolutions or parts of Resolutions in conflict with this Resolution are, to the extent 

of such conflict, hereby repealed. 
 

4. The preamble of this Resolution shall be considered to be and is hereby incorporated 
by reference as if fully set out herein. 

 
5. The proper officers and agents of the City are hereby authorized to take any and all further 

actions as may be required in connection with this Resolution. 
 

6. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption. 
 

 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of Port Wentworth, Georgia, 

this the 23rd day of June, 2022. 
 

 
 

 
 

             
GARY NORTON, Mayor 

 
 

 
 

       
             

      ZAHNAY SMOAK, Clerk of Council 
 

13.E.a

Packet Pg. 108

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

D
A

 -
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 t
o

 R
es

u
rr

ec
t 

  (
26

89
 :

 D
o

w
n

to
w

n
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

)



 City Council Meeting: 06/23/22 12:00 AM 
 7224 GA Highway 21 Department: All 

 Port Wentworth, GA  31407 Category: Agreement 
  Prepared By: Zahnay Smoak 

 SCHEDULED Department Head: Steve Davis 

  

 AGENDA ITEM (ID # 2690) DOC ID: 2690  

Updated: 6/17/2022 4:28 PM by David Stahl  Page 1 

Industrial Moratorium 

Issue/Item: Port Wentworth is growing and experiencing development trends for industrial 
properties that may not be adequately addressed by the current City zoning ordinances. 

 
Background: Mayor and Council is vested with powers to regulate property for the 
purposes of maintaining health, morals, safety, security, peace, and the general welfare of 

the City; such powers include re-zoning and acceptance of site plans.  
 
Facts and Findings: Mayor and Council recognizes the growth of the City, and their powers 

to provide for and protect the general welfare of the City and its citizens. Mayor and Council 
also recognizes that its Zoning Ordinances have not been thoroughly examined and 

considered in the present reality in which the City finds itself.  
 
The City’s current Zoning Ordinances may not adequately address recent development 

trends to and of industrial properties, especially regarding re-zoning to industrial and 
approval of site plans for industrial properties. Mayor and Council deems it important to 
prudently and deliberately develop and consider its Zoning Ordinances in a manner which 

continues land use regulations in the most orderly and predictable fashion with the least 
amount of disturbance to landowners and to the citizens of the City.   

 
This Moratorium Resolution provides a period of time for which the Mayor and Council to 
develop and cohesive and coherent policy regarding the City’s Zoning Ordinance to promote 

community development through stability, predictability, and balanced growth which will 
further the prosperity of the City as a whole. The Moratorium is for six (6) months upon the 
passage and approval of the Resolution.  

 
 

 

RESULT:  

MOVER:   

SECONDER:  

AYES:  

 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• PW - Industrial Moratorium (DOCX) 

13.F

Packet Pg. 109



 Page 1 of 4 

RESOLUTION No. R2022-0601 

STATE OF GEORGIA 

COUNTY OF CHATHAM 

CITY OF PORT WENTWORTH 

 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF PORT WENTWORTH 

 

A RESOLUTION IMPOSING A MORATORIUM ON THE RE-ZONING OF ANY 

PROPERTY TO AN INDUSTRIAL ZONING CLASSIFICATION OR DISTRICT AND 

ON THE SITE PLANS FOR SAME FOR A PERIOD NOT TO EXCEED SIX (6) 

MONTHS WHILE THE CITY CONSIDERS CHANGES TO ITS ZONING 

ORDINANCES; TO REPEAL CONFLICTING RESOLUTIONS; TO PROVIDE FOR 

SEVERABLITY; TO PROVIDE FOR AN ADOPTION DATE AND EFFECTIVE DATE; 

AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

 

WHEREAS, recent development trends in the City of Port Wentworth suggest that current 

trends for industrial use may not be adequately addressed by the current City zoning ordinances; 
 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council of Port Wentworth is vested with substantial 
powers, rights and functions to generally regulate the practice, conduct or use of property for 

the purposes of maintaining health, morals, safety, security, peace, and the general welfare of 
the City; 

 
WHEREAS, Georgia law recognizes that local governments may impose moratoria 

on zoning decisions, building permits, and other development approvals where exigent 
circumstances warrant the same; 

 
WHEREAS, Georgia courts take judicial notice of a local government's inherent 

ability to impose moratoria on an emergency basis; 
 

WHEREAS, to justify a moratorium, it must appear first, that the interests of the 
public generally, as distinguished from those of a particular class, require such interference, 

and second, that the means are reasonably necessary for the accomplishment of the purpose, 
and not unduly oppressive upon individuals; 

 
WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council has found that the interests of the public 

necessitate the enactment of a moratorium for health, safety, morals, and general welfare 
purposes by means which are reasonable and not unduly oppressive;  

 
WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council has, as a part of planning, zoning, and growth 

management, been in review of its zoning ordinances, and has been studying, with concern,  
the City's best estimates and projections of the anticipated industrial development within Port 

Wentworth; 
 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council deems it important to prudently and deliberately 
develop its zoning ordinances in a manner which integrates the above-mentioned concerns 

13.F.a

Packet Pg. 110

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

W
 -

 In
d

u
st

ri
al

 M
o

ra
to

ri
u

m
  (

26
90

 :
 In

d
u

st
ri

al
 M

o
ra

to
ri

u
m

)



 Page 2 of 4 

and therefore considers a moratorium a proper exercise of its police powers; 

13.F.a

Packet Pg. 111

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

W
 -

 In
d

u
st

ri
al

 M
o

ra
to

ri
u

m
  (

26
90

 :
 In

d
u

st
ri

al
 M

o
ra

to
ri

u
m

)



 Page 3 of 4 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council considers it paramount that land use regulation 
continues in the most orderly and predictable fashion with the least amount of disturbance to 

landowners and to the citizens of the City; 
 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council has always had a strong interest in growth 
management so as to promote the traditional police power goals of health, safety, morals, 

aesthetics, and the general welfare of the community and, in particular, the lessening of traffic 
on City roads, security of the public from crime and other dangers, promotion of health and 

general welfare of its citizens, protection of the aesthetic qualities of the City including 
access to air and light, and facilitation of the adequate provision of transportation and other 

public requirements; 
 

WHEREAS, it is the belief of the Mayor and City Council: that the concept of "public 
welfare" is broad and inclusive; that the values it represents are spiritual as well as physical, 

aesthetic as well as monetary; and that it is within the power of the Mayor and Council to 
determine that a community should be beautiful as well as healthy, spacious as well as 

clean, well balanced as well as carefully patrolled; 
 

WHEREAS, it is also the opinion of the Mayor and Council that "general welfare" 
includes the valid public objectives of aesthetics, conservation of the value of existing lands 

and buildings within the City, making the most appropriate use of resources, preserving 
neighborhood characteristics, enhancing and protecting the economic wellbeing of the 

community, facilitating adequate provision of public services, and the preservation of the 
resources of the City; 

 
WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council is, and has been, interested in developing a 

cohesive and coherent policy regarding certain uses in the City, and has intended to promote 
community development through stability, predictability and balanced growth which will 

further the prosperity of the City as a whole; 
 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council is evaluating possible revisions to the City's  
zoning ordinances with respect to the regulation of industrial development so as to address 

current development trends; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the citizens of the City to place a moratorium 
on the application and issuance of industrial re-zonings and site plans over same until the 

review is completed. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF 

PORT WENTWORTH, GEORGIA, in regular meeting assembled and pursuant to lawful 

authority thereof, as follows: 
 

1. It is hereby determined that the City's zoning ordinances require review as they relate 
to industrial development; that substantial detriment and irreparable harm may result if further 

regulation of industrial development is needed and not implemented; that such review requires 
that there be a cessation of limited duration of all re-zonings to industrial; and that it is 

13.F.a

Packet Pg. 112

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

W
 -

 In
d

u
st

ri
al

 M
o

ra
to

ri
u

m
  (

26
90

 :
 In

d
u

st
ri

al
 M

o
ra

to
ri

u
m

)



 Page 4 of 4 

necessary and in the public's interest to delay, for a reasonable and finite period of time, th e 
acceptance or processing of any applications for the rezoning of any property to an 

industrial classification or district to ensure that the design, development, and location 
of industrial uses are consistent with the long-tern planning objectives of the City. 

 
2. It is hereby determined that the City's zoning ordinances require review as they relate 

to industrial development; that substantial detriment and irreparable harm may result if further 
regulation of industrial development is needed and not implemented; that such review requires 

that there be a cessation of limited duration of all site plans of industrial; and that it is 
necessary and in the public's interest to delay, for a reasonable and finite period of time, the 

acceptance or processing of any site plans for any property of an industrial 
classification or district to ensure that the design, development, and location of 

industrial uses are consistent with the long-tern planning objectives of the City.  
  

3. There is hereby imposed a moratorium on the acceptance and processing by City staff 
of rezoning applications for the re-zoning of any property within the City to an industrial 

classification or district under the current zoning ordinances of the City.  
 

4. There is hereby imposed a moratorium on the acceptance and processing by City staff 
of any site plans for any property within the City of an industrial classification or district under 

the current zoning ordinances of the City.  
 

5. The duration of this moratorium shall be until the City adopts amendments to its zoning 
ordinances to address the above-mentioned concerns, abandons this effort by vote of the 

Mayor and Council, or until 5:00pm on December 23, 2022, whichever date is earliest.  
 

6. This moratorium shall have no effect upon rezoning occurring or site plans approved 
before the effective date of this Resolution.  

 
7. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council that all sections, 

paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Resolution are and were, upon their 
enactment, believed by the Mayor and Council to be fully valid, enforceable and 

constitutional. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council that, to the 
greatest extent allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase 

of this Resolution is severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase 
therein. It is hereby further declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council that, to the 

greatest extent allowed by law, no section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this 
Resolution is mutually dependent upon any other section, paragraph, sentence, clause or 

phrase of this Resolution. In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section 
of this Resolution shall, for any reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or 

otherwise unenforceable by the valid judgement or decree of any court of competent 
jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the Mayor and Council that such invalidity, 

unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the greatest extent allowed by law, not render 
invalid, unconstitutional, or otherwise unenforceable any of the remaining phrases, clauses, 

sentences, paragraphs, or sections of the Resolution and that, to the greatest extent allowed by 
law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and sections of the Resolution shall 

13.F.a

Packet Pg. 113

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

W
 -

 In
d

u
st

ri
al

 M
o

ra
to

ri
u

m
  (

26
90

 :
 In

d
u

st
ri

al
 M

o
ra

to
ri

u
m

)



 Page 5 of 4 

remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect.  
 

8. All Resolutions or parts of Resolutions in conflict with this Resolution are, to the extent 
of such conflict, hereby repealed. 

 
9. The preamble of this Resolution shall be considered to be and is hereby incorporated 

by reference as if fully set out herein. 
 

10. The proper officers and agents of the City are hereby authorized to take any and all further 
actions as may be required in connection with this Resolution. 

 
11. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption. 

 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and Council of Port Wentworth, Georgia, 
this the 23rd day of June, 2022. 

 
 

 
 

 
             

GARY NORTON, Mayor 
 

 
 

 
       

             
      ZAHNAY SMOAK, Clerk of Council 

 

13.F.a

Packet Pg. 114

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

W
 -

 In
d

u
st

ri
al

 M
o

ra
to

ri
u

m
  (

26
90

 :
 In

d
u

st
ri

al
 M

o
ra

to
ri

u
m

)



 City Council Meeting: 06/23/22 12:00 AM 
 7224 GA Highway 21 Department: All 

 Port Wentworth, GA  31407 Category: Personnel 
  Prepared By: Zahnay Smoak 

 SCHEDULED Department Head: Steve Davis 

  

 AGENDA ITEM (ID # 2688) DOC ID: 2688  

Updated: 6/16/2022 12:40 PM by Zahnay Smoak  Page 1 

Personnel 

Issue/Item:  
 

Background:  
 
Facts and Findings:  

 
Funding: 
 

Recommendation: 

15.A

Packet Pg. 115



 City Council Meeting: 06/23/22 12:00 AM 
 7224 GA Highway 21 Department: City Administrator 

 Port Wentworth, GA  31407 Category: Resolution 
  Prepared By: Steve Davis 

 SCHEDULED Department Head: Steve Davis 

  

 AGENDA ITEM (ID # 2693) DOC ID: 2693  

Updated: 6/17/2022 8:43 AM by Steve Davis  Page 1 

Real Estate 

Issue/Item:  
 

Background:  
 
Facts and Findings:  

 
Funding: 
 

Recommendation: 

15.B

Packet Pg. 116



 City Council Meeting: 06/23/22 12:00 AM 
 7224 GA Highway 21 Department: All 

 Port Wentworth, GA  31407 Category: Resolution 
  Prepared By: Zahnay Smoak 

 SCHEDULED Department Head: Brian Harvey 

  

 AGENDA ITEM (ID # 2687) DOC ID: 2687  

Updated: 6/17/2022 3:39 PM by David Stahl  Page 1 

Legal 

Issue/Item: 
Background: 

Facts and Findings: 
Funding: 
Recommendation: 

15.C

Packet Pg. 117


	Agenda Packet
	1. Call Meeting To Order
	2. Prayer and Pledge of Allegiance
	3. Roll Call - Clerk of Council
	Roll Call

	4. Approval of Agenda
	5. Recognition of Special Guests
	6. Public Comments - Registered Speakers
	7. Elections & Appointments
	8. Adoption of Minutes
	A.  Regular Workshop and Council Meeting Minutes - May 26,2022

	9. Communications & Petitions
	A. 2691 : Discuss Committee Assignment Process
	Policy Paper: 2691 : Discuss Committee Assignment Process


	10. Committee Reports
	11. Consent Agenda
	A. 2678 : Antrim Road Roadway Improvements Pay Request No. 5
	Policy Paper: 2678 : Antrim Road Roadway Improvements Pay Request No. 5
	a. Antrim Road Roadway Improvements Pay Request No. 5 JUNE 2022


	12. Unfinished Business
	A. 2692 : Adoption of FY2023 Budget-2nd Reading
	Policy Paper: 2692 : Adoption of FY2023 Budget-2nd Reading
	a. FY2023 Budget Book - Final


	13. New Business
	A. 2679 : Site Plan Review Application (General) 302 Rice Hope Plantation Rd June 2022
	Policy Paper: 2679 : Site Plan Review Application (General) 302 Rice Hope Plantation Rd June 2022
	a. 302 RICE HOPE PLANTATION RD PARKER G-SITE PLAN JUNE 2022 - Application
	b. 302 RICE HOPE PLANTATION RD PARKER G-SITE PLAN JUNE 2022 - Email from Dr. Parker
	c. 302 RICE HOPE PLANTATION RD PARKER G-SITE PLAN JUNE 2022 - Timeline
	d. Planning Commission Minutes June 13, 2022 DRAFT

	B. 2680 : Site Plan Review Application (General) PIN # 7-0976-02-027 HWY 30 NOBLE VINES PH 2 June 2022
	Policy Paper: 2680 : Site Plan Review Application (General) PIN # 7-0976-02-027 HWY 30 NOBLE VINES PH 2 June 2022
	a. 7-0976-02-027 Noble Vines Ph II G-Site Plan JUNE 2022 - Application
	b. 7-0976-02-027 Noble Vines Ph II G-Site Plan JUNE 2022 - Timeline

	C. 2694 : Repairs to the Wastewater Treatment Plan UV System
	Policy Paper: 2694 : Repairs to the Wastewater Treatment Plan UV System
	a. Port Wentworth - June 15th

	D. 2686 : Service Delivery Strategy Resolution
	Policy Paper: 2686 : Service Delivery Strategy Resolution
	a. SDS Resolution_City_v2_051922

	E. 2689 : Downtown Development Authority Resolution
	Policy Paper: 2689 : Downtown Development Authority Resolution
	a. DDA - Resolution to Resurrect 

	F. 2690 : Industrial Moratorium
	Policy Paper: 2690 : Industrial Moratorium
	a. PW - Industrial Moratorium


	14. Resolutions/Ordinances/Proclamations
	15. Executive Session
	A. 2688 : Personnel
	Policy Paper: 2688 : Personnel

	B. 2693 : Real Estate
	Policy Paper: 2693 : Real Estate

	C. 2687 : Legal
	Policy Paper: 2687 : Legal


	16. Adjournment
	17. Agenda Items

	Appendix
	9.A · 2691 : Discuss Committee Assignment Process
	11.A · 2678 : Antrim Road Roadway Improvements Pay Request No. 5
	11.A.a · Antrim Road Roadway Improvements Pay Request No. 5 JUNE 2022

	12.A · 2692 : Adoption of FY2023 Budget-2nd Reading
	12.A.a · FY2023 Budget Book - Final

	13.A · 2679 : Site Plan Review Application (General) 302 Rice Hope Plantation Rd June 2022
	13.A.a · 302 RICE HOPE PLANTATION RD PARKER G-SITE PLAN JUNE 2022 - Application
	13.A.b · 302 RICE HOPE PLANTATION RD PARKER G-SITE PLAN JUNE 2022 - Email from Dr. Parker
	13.A.c · 302 RICE HOPE PLANTATION RD PARKER G-SITE PLAN JUNE 2022 - Timeline
	13.A.d · Planning Commission Minutes June 13, 2022 DRAFT

	13.B · 2680 : Site Plan Review Application (General) PIN # 7-0976-02-027 HWY 30 NOBLE VINES PH 2 June 2022
	13.B.a · 7-0976-02-027 Noble Vines Ph II G-Site Plan JUNE 2022 - Application
	13.B.b · 7-0976-02-027 Noble Vines Ph II G-Site Plan JUNE 2022 - Timeline

	13.C · 2694 : Repairs to the Wastewater Treatment Plan UV System
	13.C.a · Port Wentworth - June 15th

	13.D · 2686 : Service Delivery Strategy Resolution
	13.D.a · SDS Resolution_City_v2_051922

	13.E · 2689 : Downtown Development Authority Resolution
	13.E.a · DDA - Resolution to Resurrect 

	13.F · 2690 : Industrial Moratorium
	13.F.a · PW - Industrial Moratorium

	15.A · 2688 : Personnel
	15.B · 2693 : Real Estate
	15.C · 2687 : Legal


